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CORPORATE INFORMATION AND KEY DATES

AS AT 19 MARCH 2024

REGISTERED OFFICE AND
PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
25th Floor

Emperor Group Centre

288 Hennessy Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRAR
Tricor Secretaries Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong
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Certified Public Accountants
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35th Floor, One Pacific Place

88 Queensway

Hong Kong
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Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of China Limited, Macau Branch

Bank of Communications (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of Communications Co., Limited, HK Branch

China Construction Bank Corporation

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited
Luso International Banking Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
OCBC Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

KEY DATES
Annual Results Announcement 19 March 2024
Final Dividend HKO.56 cent per share

- Latest Time to Lodge Transfers 27 May 2024
(before 4:30 p.m.)
28 and 29 May 2024

(both days inclusive)

- Book Close Dates

- Record Date 29 May 2024
- Payment Date 20 June 2024
2024 Annual General Meeting 21 May 2024
- Last Time to Lodge Transfers 14 May 2024

(before 4:30 p.m.)
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RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS

>
e g

The board of directors (“Board” or "Directors”) of Emperor HEEZFHKBERLQAD(A2BNZEEE
Watch & Jewellery Limited (“Company”) presents the audited (EFZIHEZFNRELARAREME R
consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries 5 (48 A&EE ) & E2023F12831HIEFE
(collectively referred to as "Group”) for the year ended 31 (KFENZKEBERGEER -

December 2023 (“Year").

For the year ended 31 December

HE12HS1HLLEE

HK$' million Changes
BEET i &)
Revenue 3,684 4,823 + 30.9%
A

g;;s profit 1177 1,450 +23.2%

H *

g\;é%l%egBElgg*D 376 470 + 25.0%
Net profit

el e 222 299 + 34.7%
Basic earnings per share HK3.28 cents HK4.41 cents + 34.5%
SREXEF Al Al o
Full year dividend per share HK1.00 cent HK1.32 cents + 32.0%
BREFRE Al A&l o

b Adjusted EBITD represents earnings before interest, tax and
depreciation charge on the self-owned flagship store, which reflects the
Group's core operating performance. The Group has fully adopted the
HKFRS 16, which amortisation of right-of-use assets associated with

rental lease agreements were included.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RESULTS

Boosted by the full resumption of travel and revival of
consumption sentiment, the Group's total revenue grew by
30.9% to HK$4,823.2 million (2022: HK$3,684.3 million)
during the Year. Revenue from Hong Kong and mainland
China were HK$2,510.0 million (2022: HK$1,652.5 million) and
HK$1,372.9 million (2022: HK$1,186.3 million), respectively,
accounting for 52.0% (2022: 44.9%) and 28.5% (2022:
32.2%) of the total revenue, respectively. In terms of revenue
by product segment, the sales revenue from the watch
and jewellery segments were HK$3,480.4 million (2022:
HK$3,017.6 million) and HK$1,342.8 million (2022: HK$666.7
million), respectively, accounting for 72.2% (2022: 81.9%) and
27.8% (2022: 18.1%) of the total revenue, respectively.

Gross profit increased by 23.2% to HK$1,450.3 million
(2022: HK$1,177.3 million). As a result of the improvement in
total revenue, the Group's net profit increased by 34.7% to
HK$299.2 million (2022: HK$222.1 million) during the Year,
Basic earnings per share was HK4.41 cents (2022: HK3.28
cents). The Group has recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HKO0.56 cent (2022: HKO0.62 cent) per share.
Together with the interim dividend of HKO0.76 cent (2022:
HKO0.38 cent) per share, the total dividends for the full year are
HK1.32 cents (2022: HK1.0 cent) per share.
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EREEZEMERHERAEENBEH T » &
EEPRAFERLEU AL N130.9%ZE 4,823,200,000
78 7T (20224 © 3,684,300,0008 7T) - kBB B K&
R P9 3 B9 W A 9 Bl 22,510,000,00058 7t (2022
£ 11,652,500,0007871) K 1,372,900,00078 77 (2022
£F 1 1,186,300,00078 7T) > 43 Bl 14 48 UK A B952.0%
(20224 : 44.9%) F2285% (20224F : 32.2%) o 1%
EmDHEoNKAMES > Bk REKRE DI
By 85 & W A 9 Bl 43,480,400,00078 7T (20224 :
3,017,600,0007 7t) 52 1,342,800,00078 7T (20224 :
666,700,000/ 7T) *» 73 AL 4B UK A #Y72.2% (2022
F 1 81.9%) 2 27.8% (20224F : 18.1%) °

F F 1 1023.2% £ 1,450,300,0007 7T (20224 :
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1.0781) °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MARKET REVIEW

The macro economy has generally recovered from the
pandemic. Global outbound travel has normalised, and
this together with the resumption of general mobility have
contributed to a resurgence in retail activities. According to the
Hong Kong Tourism Board, the total number of visitor arrivals
was 34.0 million during the Year, which was approximately 61%
of the figure in 2019. With the reopening of borders, a boom
in consumption fuelled by pent-up demand was seen in the
first half of the Year, hence Chinese consumption rebounded
significantly, benefiting certain industries such as luxury
goods, travel, food and beverage, etc.

In the second half of the Year, the market was disrupted
by a global economic slowdown; factors such as tightened
monetary policies, inflationary pressure, interest rate hikes,
ongoing geopolitical tensions, etc. led to a volatile economic
environment. Chinese consumer confidence was softened due
to a declining property market and reduced export demand;
consumers turned cautious with the uncertain economic
outlook. Nevertheless, the consumption sentiment of Hong
Kong and Macau markets remained stable.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a leading retailer of European-made
internationally renowned watches, together with fine jewellery
products under its own brand, "Emperor Jewellery". The
Company has been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since July 2008.

The Group has established a retail network across Hong Kong,
Macau, mainland China, Singapore and Malaysia, as well as
several online shopping platforms. With a history of over 80
years, the Group carries a balanced and comprehensive watch
dealership list. The target customers range from middle to
high income groups worldwide. The Group's core strategy
focuses on maintaining its position as the leading watch and
jewellery retailing group in Greater China, coupled with an eye
on expansion beyond the region.

Presence in Prime Retail Locations
As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 93 stores in

Hong Kong, Macau, mainland China, Singapore and Malaysia.
The distribution was as follows:

' E G am ke o0 A
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B2 o RAFIB2008FETHEE BEM AR
SRRERAB EMR LT °

FAEBZERBENREE R FERN
#ho FNW K BREE . RA BER LR
MIa AEBEEAOH EE > REY
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R2023%F12831H » AEEREE ~ BFF ~ F
Bt~ N & ERAEES S HIEE
woHSMHBWT:

Number of stores
& & E

Hong Kong Eoe) 35
Macau R 5
Mainland China HR ] A A 44
Singapore 03 8
Malaysia ERAR 1
Total | 93

These stores include self-branded "“Emperor Jewellery"
stores, dedicated watch boutiques and multi-brand watch
stores (with or without jewellery counters).

Over the years, the Group has built a strategic sales network
in prime shopping areas as well as popular residential districts,
particularly in Hong Kong and mainland China. Within
mainland China, over 80% of its stores are located in first tier
and new first tier cities, aligning with the Group's customer
targeting and market positioning. The Group also successfully
expanded its presence in Singapore and Malaysia, to enhance
its footprint and brand exposure beyond Greater China.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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During the Year, the Group continued to open jewellery and
watch stores in Hong Kong and mainland China. While further
expanding its network of stores, the Group will continue
focusing on residential areas in Hong Kong and prominent
cities in mainland China.

With its long-standing history, the Group is a trusted partner
of and maintains solid relationships with major high end luxury
Swiss watch brand suppliers, thereby continuing to hold a
comprehensive portfolio of watch dealerships and maintaining
its leading position, especially in Hong Kong. The Group
actively participates in co-marketing campaigns and events
with brands, highlighting new products and connecting the
customers in a personalised way.

The Group offers premium quality "Emperor Jewellery"
products with a dedication to design excellence and
craftsmanship covering diamond and jadeites, fine gold,
pearl and color stones. "Emperor Jewellery" unveils unique
collections of exquisite designs that embrace and nurture
different clusters of customers. 2023 is a year of double spring
and leap month in the luni-solar calendar, which is said to
be good for weddings. The Group has designed a series of
exquisite and fashionable products that are suitable for both
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Chinese and Western weddings, while also embracing the
prevailing trend of light luxury weddings:

e The "Auspicious Dragon and Phoenix" collection
symbolises the natural harmony of a newlywed couple.
Every piece of jewellery strives for perfection, with vivid,
three-dimensional, and meticulous details. The entire
collection includes necklaces, bangles, earrings, and rings,
embracing the love story of the couple.

e To cater to the growing trend of simpler weddings,
"Emperor Jewellery" has also created “"The Spotlight"
light luxury collection with romantic and elegant charm.
Each piece is made up of 10 diamonds, with nine
diamonds surrounding the central diamond, creating a
dazzling and perfect combination of light and beauty from
any angle which also suits after wedding.

The Group has also begun more closely collaborating with
the artists under Emperor Group, and this is welcomed
by its customers. The "CORE & ENCORE" collection
draws inspiration from Hins Cheung’'s passion for music
composition, showcasing his unwavering dedication and
pursuit of perfection in his creative journey. With dazzling
diamond designs, the collection celebrates his commitment
to excellence and staying true to what he loves. It embodies
a remarkable style that harmonises with the current gender-
fluid trend that is popular in European and American fashion
circles, exuding a sense of neutrality. The "CORE & ENCORE"
collection embraces the charm of casual luxury and fashion,
making its jewellery perfect for everyday wear or important
occasions, whether simply expressing personal style or
indulging in glamorous attire.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

L A 5T

Besides, the Group has always prioritised customer
relationship building. There are multi-faceted activations
through exclusive promotions, workshops, festival and birthday
gifting to strengthen engagement with customers. During the
Year, the Group launched several jewellery promotional events
to showcase the products and enhance sales opportunities.

With the growing popularity of the internet, the Group has
established a jewellery presence on several online shopping
platforms - including HKTV Mall, Tmall and jd.com - in order
to capture the massive potential of internet and mobile users
and enhance customer experience, and expand its revenue
source and enhance brand visibility at the same time. To
formulate an effective product strategy, the Group analyses the
database and internet behaviour of the users.

Currently, the Group's official website showcases a diverse
range of watch brands, with a focus on Patek Philippe, Rolex,
Tudor and Cartier, helping to promote the brands and their
signature collections. The Group will continue identifying
opportunities for collaboration with other watch brands.

PROSPECTS

Around the beginning of 2024, economists generally
lowered world growth forecasts and consumer confidence
remained weak in the face of an uncertain economic outlook.
Nevertheless, China remains a prominent force in the global
economy and an indispensable investment market for
investors. Leveraging its brand reputation in China, the Group
will continue expanding in the Hong Kong and mainland China
markets to seize the ample opportunities. With the ongoing
Renminbi fluctuations, it is expected that Chinese consumers
will tend to spend within the country and the Group is poised
to benefit from it with its established presence in the Hong
Kong, Macau and mainland China markets.

The pandemic has resulted in changes to consumer
behaviours, and online platforms have become important
marketing channels. The Group will step up efforts to promote
its brand by enhancing its presence through various online
platforms. The Group will observe the market closely, and
adjust its strategies and product mix accordingly, in order to
maintain stable business performance.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Bank balances and cash on hand of the Group as at 31
December 2023 was HK$619.6 million (2022: HK$664.4
million), which were mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollar
and Renminbi. As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not
have any bank borrowings (2022: zero) and was in a net cash
position, hence its net gearing ratio (calculated on the basis of
bank borrowings less cash and cash equivalents over net asset
value) was zero (2022: zero). The Group also had available
unutilised banking facilities of approximately HK$1,043.6
million.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's current assets and
current liabilities were approximately HK$3,859.1 million (2022;
HK$3,505.9 million) and HK$531.1 million (2022: HK$433.5
million), respectively. Current ratio and quick ratio of the Group
were 7.3 (2022: 8.1) and 1.5 (2022: 1.9), respectively.

In view of the Group's financial position as at 31 December
2023, the Directors considered that the Group had sufficient
working capital for its operations and future development
plans.

B4 %5 [O] B8
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 777 salespersons
(2022: 638) and 231 office staff (2022: 201). Total staff costs
(including Directors’ remuneration) were HK$340.0 million
(2022: HK$262.9 million) for the Year. Each employee's
remuneration was determined in accordance with individual's
responsibilities, competence and skills, experience and
performance as well as market pay level. Staff benefits
include medical and life insurance, provident funds and other
competitive fringe benefits.

To provide incentive or rewards to staff, the Company adopted
a share option scheme, particulars of which are set out in the
section headed “Share Option Scheme” on pages 141 to 143
of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board is pleased to recommend the payment of a
final dividend of HKO.56 cent per share for the Year (“Final
Dividend") (2022: HKO0.62 cent), subject to the approval of
the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company to be held on 21 May 2024 (Tuesday) (2024
AGM"). If being approved, the Final Dividend will be paid on
20 June 2024 (Thursday) to shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on 29 May 2024
(Wednesday).
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES

HERERTHEANBEZEE

CINDY YEUNG
L E
Executive Director and

Chairperson

HITEEHRERE

¥
CINDY YEUNG, aged 59, an Executive Director of the
Company and the Chairperson of the Board as well as the
Chairperson of the Executive Committee of the Company and a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. She joined the
Group in September 1990 and became a director of Emperor
Watch & Jewellery (HK) Company Limited, an operating arm of
the retail outlets of the Group in Hong Kong, in April 1999. Ms.
Yeung has over 30 years of experience in watch and jewellery
industry. She has obtained the qualification of the Graduate
Gemologist of Gemological Institute of America (GIA) and
subsequently graduated from University of San Francisco with
a Bachelor's Degree of Science in Business Administration
majoring in Management, with emphasis on International
Business.

Ms. Yeung is an executive committee member of Hong Kong
Federation of Guangzhou Associations Limited and honorary
president of the 1st Executive Committee of Hong Kong
Federation of Guangzhou Women Association Limited. She
is also a member of the Supervisory Committee of The Hong
Kong Jewellers' and Goldsmiths' Association, Limited and
council member of The Jewellers' and Goldsmiths’ Association
of Hong Kong Limited.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

WONG CHI FAI, aged 68, an Executive Director of the
Company. He has been involved in the management of the
Group since November 1998. Mr. Wong is a member of the
Executive Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the
Company as well as a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. He has over 30 years of finance and management
experience in different businesses ranging from retailing of
watch and jewellery, property investment and development,
hotel and hospitality, financial and securities services,
wholesaling and retailing of furniture, cinema development
and operation to entertainment production and investment,
artiste management as well as media and publication. Mr.
Wong is currently a director of Emperor International Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 163) (“Emperor International”), Emperor
Entertainment Hotel Limited (Stock Code: 296) (“Emperor
E Hotel”), Emperor Capital Group Limited (Stock Code: 717)
("Emperor Capital Group”), Emperor Culture Group Limited
(Stock Code: 491) ("Emperor Culture”), Ulferts International
Limited ("Ulferts") (Stock Code: 1711) and New Media Lab
Limited ("New Media Lab") (Stock Code: 1284), all being
listed members of Emperor Group. He is a Certified Public
Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.

FAN MAN SEUNG, VANESSA, aged 61, an Executive
Director of the Company. She has been involved in the
management of the Group since November 1998. Ms.
Fan is also the Chairperson of the Corporate Governance
Committee, a member of the Executive Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company as well as a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. She has over 35
years of corporate management experience in diversified
businesses ranging from retailing of watch and jewellery,
property investment and development, hotel and hospitality,
financial and securities services, wholesaling and retailing of
furniture, cinema development and operation to entertainment
production and investment, artiste management as well as
media and publication. Ms. Fan is currently a director of
Emperor International, Emperor E Hotel, Emperor Capital
Group, Emperor Culture, Ulferts and New Media Lab. She is a
lawyer by profession in Hong Kong and a qualified accountant,
and holds a Master's Degree in Business Administration.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES

HERERTHEANBEZEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

CHAN SIM LING, IRENE, aged 61, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in
May 2016. She is also the Chairperson of the Nomination
Committee as well as a member of the Audit Committee and
the Corporate Governance Committee of the Company. Ms.
Chan is a retired solicitor with over 20 years of experience
as independent non-executive director of various listed
companies. She is currently an independent non-executive
director of Chinlink International Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 997), Emperor Capital Group and Emperor Culture.
Ms. Chan graduated from The University of Hong Kong with
Bachelor's Degree in Laws.

LIU HING HUNG, aged 60, was appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in May 2017. He is also
the Chairman of the Audit Committee as well as a member of
the Remuneration Committee and the Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company. Mr. Liu runs a professional
accountancy firm in Hong Kong and has over 20 years of
experience in accounting, taxation, auditing and corporate
finance. He is currently an independent nonexecutive director
of SIM Technology Group Limited (Stock Code: 2000). Mr. Liu
holds a Master’'s Degree in Business Administration. He is a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and also
a member of the Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors.

Law, Michael Ka Ming, aged 63, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in March
2024. He is also the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee,
a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Law has over 30 years of
experience in corporate management, finance, banking,
construction and property development. He is currently an
executive director of Zhejiang United Investment Holdings
Group Limited (Stock Code: 8366) and an independent non-
executive director of Century Group International Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 2113). Mr. Law holds a Master’'s Degree
in business administration from The Chinese University of
Hong Kong and a Bachelor's Degree in building studies from
The University of Hong Kong. He is a Chartered Quantity
Surveyor of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.
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The Directors present this annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 70 of this annual report.

An interim dividend of HK0.76 cent (2022: HK0.38 cent) per
share for the Year amounting to approximately HK$51.5 million
was paid to the Shareholders during the Year.

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HKO0.56 cent (2022: HK0.62 cent) per share for the Year to
those shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) whose
names appear on the register of members on 29 May 2024
(Wednesday), subject to the approval of the Shareholders at
the 2024 AGM.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the Group's business, a discussion and analysis
of the Group’s performance during the Year and an analysis of
the likely future development of the Group's business are set
out in the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 5 to
12 of this annual report. Description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 29 to 62 of this annual report
and note 27b to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

There is no important event affecting the Group that had
occurred since the end of the Year up to the date of this
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
HEG®RE

EFEREFAEEANREKEEZFRAEEZ
REMB®RE -

FEXH

ARBR—BEREERQAB  EXEZNER
Bl EBHN GG M B|RKRM 34 -

EERRE

FEERAFEZEEHNEAFRE0EZ
MEBEmREMEEWARRE -

REEEREXATARFBIRNGEEE ZHE
& BB 076 1 (20224 : 0.385 1) » H &9
51,500,000 7T ©

EFREMN2024F58290 (28 =) 25 K&
REGEMzARERKRETRE]) KT EK0.56
Bl zAFERPRKE (20224F : §K0.6248
il) > HESRENR0UERETBREARSG it
EBRBAMEE o

EHOERRIR

REFEENREBEBZAFTEZ A&H
KBEZHWMEDMRAEBEFH RKRAED
EERDMDENAFRFESEIZEZEERES
MR e AEEEHNZ T2 R B KT
K Z5F 18757 5l 5l & i A F R E29F628 2
TCEELRBRSRETHBREMEE27b ©

BAFEREERAFHRAR MEZEFE
FEBENEKREN

EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED # 2 %kBEHR AT P17

2023 ANNUAL REPORT £ R




DIRECTORS’ REPORT
HEGRS

In addition, an analysis of the Group's performance during the
Year using financial key performance indicators is provided
in the Five-year Financial Summary on page 152. Discussion
on the Group’'s environmental policies and performance, key
relationships with the Company’s key stakeholders as well as
compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have
significant impact on the Company are set out in the 2023
Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 152 of
this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 73 of this annual report.

The Company's reserves available for distribution to the
Shareholders as at 31 December 2023, calculated in
accordance with the Companies Ordinance, amounted to
HK$1,378,789,000 (2022: HK$1,277,112,000).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’'s listed
securities.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the changes in the property, plant and equipment

of the Group during the Year are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the aggregate sales to the Group's five largest
customers accounted for approximately 1.5% (2022: 2.6%)
of the total turnover of the Group. The Group’s five largest
suppliers contributed to approximately 86.8% (2022: 93.2%) of
the purchases of the Group during the Year.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the number of issued Shares) had any
beneficial interest in the above major customers and suppliers
of the Group.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual
report were:

Ms. Cindy Yeung (Chairperson)

Mr. Ng Koon Keung, Ricky (Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned on 31 January 2024)

Mr. Wong Chi Fai

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa

Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene

Mr. Liu Hing Hung

Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming (appointed on 19 March 2024)
Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne (passed away on 4 February 2024)

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management
as at the date of this annual report are set out on pages 14 to
16 of this annual report. Details of Directors’ remuneration are
set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with Article 79 of the Company's Articles of
Association (“Articles”), Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming (“Mr. Law"),
who was appointed by the Board on 19 March 2024, shall hold
office from his appointment date until the first annual general
meeting of the company after his appointment (i.e. 2024 AGM),
whereas pursuant to Articles 80(1) and 80(3) of the Articles,
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa shall retire by rotation at the
2024 AGM. Both of them, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election thereat.
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None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at
the 2024 AGM has an unexpired service contract with the
Group which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning
the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the Group’s business were entered into or
existed during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company has in force the permitted indemnity provisions
which are provided for in the Company's Articles of
Association and in the directors and officers liability insurance
maintained for the Group in respect of potential liability
and costs associated with legal proceedings that may be
brought against the Directors and the directors of the Group
respectively.

DIRECTORS’' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company (“Chief
Executives”) in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the "SFQO")) as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
adopted by the Company (“EWJ Securities Code") were as
follows:
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

HEGWS

Ordinary shares of the Company (“Shares”) EREZEBER(TR1G1)
Number Approximate
of Shares % of issued
interested voting Shares
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interests FElExmz WHWERTER
EENR g5 #atE RHEE FERHBO%
Ms. Cindy Yeung Eligible beneficiary of 4,298,630,000 63.41

BEBZt a private discretionary trust
MWANBEEZEERT T A
Note: These Shares were held by Emperor Watch & Jewellery Group B LWERGIDHEESEEHRKEERTER
Holdings Limited ("Emperor W&J Holdings”), a wholly-owned BRABD(EEEFRHETERIEFE
subsidiary of Albert Yeung Watch & Jewellery Holdings Limited HABSmERKEERBRAR (M5
("AY W&]J Holdings"). AY W&J Holdings was in turn held by First SHERKEZER)ZE2ENBAR
Family Advisors Trust reg. (“First Family”) in trust for a private 15 = Ak 18 % Tk 2 4T B B /B First Family
discretionary trust of which Ms. Cindy Yeung is one of the Advisors Trust reg. ("First Family ) ML FA A
eligible beneficiaries. MEGEEEATE MBEBLXLAZ
EEaERZTmAZ— °
Ordinary shares ZiER
Approximate %
Number of of issued
Capacity/Nature of shares interested voting shares
Name of Directors Name of associated corporations interests HEk#GZz (HEBRTERE
EEny WHEEERTE B/ REHE Rir&AE R 17 4%
Ms. Cindy Yeung Emperor International Eligible beneficiary of 2,747,611,223 74.71
ETSE EEAR a private discretionary trust (Note) (i 7#)
MWARBETLZ
HERR®
Emperor E Hotel -Ditto- 851,353,645 71.63
HERUEE —[FE- (Note) (132)
Emperor Culture -Ditto- 2,371,313,094 7380
EEVIEZR -RLt- (Note) (i1 7#)
Ulferts -Ditto- 600,000,000 75.00
B {E -FLt- (Note) (i1 7#)
New Media -Ditto- 315,000,000 5250
MELRE -RLt- (Note) (i1 7#)
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Emperor International Beneficial owner 10,500,000 0.29
Vanessa EE2AR EREAA
PRELT
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Note: Emperor International, Emperor E Hotel, Emperor Culture,
Ulferts and New Media are companies with their shares listed
on the Stock Exchange. These shares were ultimately owned by
the respective private discretionary trusts. Ms. Cindy Yeung had
deemed interests in the same shares by virtue of being one of

the eligible beneficiaries of such trusts.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of
the Directors nor Chief Executives had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (“Share
Option Scheme”) on 23 May 2018. Particulars of the Share
Option Scheme are set out in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements. No option was granted, exercised,
cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme since its
adoption.

The number of share options available for grant under the
scheme mandate as at the beginning and the end of the Year
was both 687,308,812 shares, representing 10.14% of the
Shares in issue as at the date of this annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed in note
29 to the consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked
agreement was entered into by the Company during the Year
or subsisted at the end of the Year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme as stated above, at
the end of the Year and at no time during the Year was the
Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors or Chief Executives or their spouses or children
under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.
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OTHER PERSONS’' INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to any Directors or Chief Executives, as at
31 December 2023, the persons or corporations (other than a
Director or Chief Executive) who had, or were deemed or taken
to have interests and short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO (“DI Register"”) were as follows:

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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Hitt N\ T RRGRAEMRG ZEE

MERNEFHESTHRAEM > 1120234F
12H31H FEFHESITHAEII UT
ATSEBERRMDAEBRG P HES NHKE
RHAREFEECTHNIRIBEESFRAERH
EIHFEATHFZELM(ERZLM) A
ZHREmRRA

Names Capacity/Nature of interests
BB Ha B H=EME

Emperor W&J Holdings
HEFEHREER

AY W&J Holdings
BERERKEER

First Family

Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert
("Dr. Yeung")

BEREL (MBEL)

Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon
BENELZL

Brandes Investment
Partners, L.P.

Note: These Shares were the same Shares of which Ms. Cindy Yeung had

Beneficial owner

BEmZEAA

Interest in a controlled corporation
NZEREE 2 B m

Trustee of a private discretionary trust

hWABIBEFEZZEA

Founder of a private discretionary trust
ThABIBEFEZEIIZA

Interest of spouse

Fo B # m

Investment manager
BEKIE

Mtat

Number of Approximate
issued Shares % of issued
interested voting Shares
FElEmz WHERTHER
RIDEE FERHBO%
4,298,630,000 63.41
(Note) ([t %)
4,298,630,000 63.41
(Note) (/1 )
4,298,630,000 63.41
(Note) (i &)
4,298,630,000 63.41
(Note) (Kt 37)
4,298,630,000 63.41
(Note) (1 &t)
339,017,288 5.00

IERNPIHEXF@HEERESITH

deemed interest as set out under Section (a) of “Directors’ and Chief

Executives' Interests in Securities” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the
Directors or Chief Executives were not aware of any person
or corporation (other than a Director or Chief Executive) who
had, or were deemed or taken to have, any interests or short
positions in any Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in
the DI Register.

ANBZESRD I TRABHEBRLEIRER
BEREDZERRD -

br £ BB & b 1R2023F12H31H &5
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors or their
respective close associates was interested in any business
which was considered to compete or was likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group as
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).

DIRECTORS’' MATERIAL INTERESTS
IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS,
CONTRACTS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Group had the following continuing
connected transactions with connected persons (as defined in
the Listing Rules) of the Company and a Director had material
interests, directly or indirectly, in such transactions:

Date: 3 December 2020
Parties: (1) EIHL Agreement: the Company and Emperor
International
(2) EEH Agreement: the Company and Emperor E
Hotel
(Emperor International, Emperor E Hotel and their
subsidiaries are collectively referred to as “Emperor
International Group”)
Term: From 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2024
Nature: Each of MLA sets out the framework of the terms

governing all existing and future tenancy/licensing
transaction(s) (“Tenancy Transaction(s)") regarding
leasing of certain properties (including offices and
retail shops) from Emperor International Group with
aggregate tenancy annual caps for each of the 9
months ended 31 December 2021, the financial years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2023 and the 3 months
ending 31 March 2024,
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and Director's

Announcements:

Pursuant to the MLAs, relevant member(s) of the
Group and Emperor International Group may from time
to time enter into any definitive leasing agreements
in relation to any Tenancy Transactions (“Definitive
Leasing Agreement(s)"). The terms of each Definitive
Leasing Agreement shall be on normal commercial
terms or on terms which are no less favourable to the
Group than terms offered by independent third parties.
The terms and rental shall be subject to arm’s length
negotiation and determined based on the condition
of the properties and with reference to the then
prevailing market rents on property(ies) comparable in
location, area and permitted use.

As Emperor International and Emperor E Hotel were
both indirectly controlled by the respective private
discretionary trusts set up by Dr. Yeung, Emperor
International and Emperor E Hotel were deemed
connected persons of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Ms. Cindy Yeung, a Director,
had deemed interest in the transactions by virtue of
being one of the eligible beneficiaries of the relevant
private discretionary trust controlling Emperor
International and Emperor E Hotel.

3 December 2020 and 2 February 2021
24 December 2020

For the Year, the aggregate right-of-use assets
amount and rental expense amount paid in respect of
the Tenancy Transactions with Emperor International
Group (which did not exceed the approved right-of-
use assets annual cap of HK$350,000,000 and rental
expense annual cap of HK$5,000,000 respectively for
the Year) were as follows:

Right-of-use assets - HK$39,833,000
Rental expense - HK$1,617,000

With the upcoming expiration of the MLAs, the
Company entered into new MLAs with Emperor
International and Emperor E Hotel on 23 March 2023
respectively; and the respective aggregate tenancy
annual caps have been approved at the annual general
meeting of the Company on 25 May 2023,
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Date:

Parties:

Term:

Nature:

Connected
relationship
and Director's
interests:

Announcement:

Consignment for
the Year:

1 December 2022

(1) The Company

(2)  Dr. Yeung

1 January 2023 to 31 December 2025

The Group may at its discretion make consignment
arrangements with Dr. Yeung and his associates
("Yeung Family") and sell the consigned items at
its retail shops at the Directors may think fit and
beneficial to the Group.

As Dr. Yeung is the father of Ms. Cindy Yeung (a
Director), hence Dr. Yeung and the Yeung Family
members are connected persons of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

1 December 2022

During the Year, certain jewellery, watch and
accessory items with an aggregate consignment value
of HK$15,255,000 consigned from the Yeung Family
was recorded which did not exceed the annual cap of
HK$35,000,000 for the Year. The Group had applied
the same purchasing and retail pricing policy and
mechanism to these items as those normally adopted
in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group. No sale of such items was made during the
Year.

Regarding the related party transactions as set out in note
31 to the consolidated financial statements, the transactions
as shown in item 8 are non-exempt continuing connected
transactions of the Company (“Non-exempt CCTs") and that
the Company had complied with the disclosure requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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The Company's independent auditor was engaged to report
on the Group's Non-exempt CCTs in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” (“Auditor’s
Letter”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

The independent auditor had issued an unqualified conclusions
in respect of the Non-exempt CCTs of the Group as set out
from pages 24 to 26 of this annual report in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent
non-executive directors of the Company (“INEDs") had
reviewed the Non-exempt CCTs and the Auditor's Letter and
confirmed that these transactions had been entered into by
the Group:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(ii) on normal commercial terms or better (as the case may
be); and

(iii) according to the agreements governing them on terms
that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, there was no transaction,
arrangement or contract which was significant in relation
to the Group's business to which the Company or any of its
holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party and in which a Director or his/her connected entity had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the Directors shall be decided by the
Board as recommended by the Remuneration Committee
having regard to a written remuneration policy (which ensures
a clear link of business strategy and a close alignment
with the shareholders’ interest and current market best
practice). Remuneration should be paid with reference to the
Board's corporate goals and objectives, the salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
of the executive and non-executive Directors, internal equity
of employment conditions across the Group and applicability
of performance based remuneration. The Director's fees are
paid fees in line with market practice. No individual should
determine his or her own remuneration.

Employees’ remuneration was determined in accordance with
individual's responsibility, competence and skills, experience
and performances as well as market pay level. Remuneration
package includes, as the case may be, basic salaries, Directors’
fees, housing allowances, contribution to pension schemes,
discretionary bonus relating to financial performance of the
Group and individual performance, ad-hoc rewards, share
options and other competitive fringe benefits such as medical
and life insurances. Details of the emoluments of the Directors
and the five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out
in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report, there
was sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company'’s
issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire and, being
eligible, offer itself for re-appointment at the 2024 AGM. A
resolution for its re-appointment as independent auditor of the
Company will be proposed thereat.

On behalf of the Board

Cindy Yeung
Chairperson

Hong Kong
19 March 2024
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance for the Company so as to ensure
“Accountability, Responsibility and Transparency” towards
Shareholders, investors, employees as well as stakeholders of
the Company.

The Directors have adopted various policies to ensure
compliance with the code provisions of Corporate Governance
Code ("CG Code") as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing
Rules so as to having effective application of the principles
of good corporate governance. During the Year, the Company
had fully complied with all code provisions of the CG Code.

CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY

The Company is committed to cultivating a corporate
culture, focusing on four pillars, namely customer centricity,
excellence in products and services, people first and positivity,
which is underpinned by its purpose and values that enable
employees at all levels of the Group to thrive and meet their
full potentials by acting in a lawful, ethical and responsible
manner that allows the Company to deliver sustainable long-
term performance and operate in a way that benefits society
and the environment.

The Company’'s purpose and values serve as a guide for
employees’ conduct and behaviours, ensuring that they
are integrated throughout the Company’'s operational
practices, workplace policies and practices and stakeholder
relationships:
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The management is responsible for setting the tone and
shaping the corporate culture of the Company, as well
as defining the purpose, values and strategic direction of
the Group, which are under review by the Board. Taking
into account the corporate culture is reflected in various
contexts, such as workforce engagement, employee retention
and training, legal and regulatory compliance, staff safety,
wellbeing and support, the culture, purpose, value and strategy
of the Group are aligned with one another.

THE BOARD

The Company is headed by the Board which is responsible for
the leadership, control and promotion of the success of the Group
in the interests of the Shareholders by directing and supervising
its affairs and by formulating strategic directions and monitoring
the financial and management performance of the Group.

During the Year, the Board comprises seven Directors, with
four Executive Directors and three INEDs. Mr. Ng Koon Keung,
Ricky, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ")
of the Company, resigned on 31 January 2024. Ms. Chan
Wiling, Yvonne (“Ms. Chan"), an INED, passed away on 4
February 2024 and Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming was appointed
to fill the casual vacancy created by Ms. Chan on 19 March
2024. Names and other biographical details of the existing
six members of the Board are set out on pages 14 to 16 of
this annual report under “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Executives” section. All of them possess the skills, experience
and expertise either in the same industry or relevant to the
management of the business of the Group.

In compliance with Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules, Mr. Law
had received training and legal advice on 15 March 2024 and
that he had confirmed he understood his obligations as a
Director.

To ensure independent views and input are available to the Board,
the following mechanisms were established during the Year:

e sufficient number of INEDs in a total of three, representing
more than one-third of the Board;

e no INED has served the Board for more than 9 years;

e separation of the role of the Chairperson and the CEO
ensures that there is a balance of power and authority; and

e annual meeting between the Chairperson and all INEDs
without presence of other Directors provides an effective
platform for the Chairperson to listen to independent
views on various issues concerning the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

During the Year, the Board reviewed the implementation of
these mechanisms and determined that they remain effective.

The Company also adopted the Board Diversity Policy setting
out the approach to achieve a diverse Board with a balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives to the business
nature of the Company. In designing the Board’'s composition,
Board diversity has been considered from a wide range of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service, and any other factors
that the Board may consider relevant and applicable from
time to time. The merits and contribution that will bring to
the Board for any Director proposed for re-election or any
candidate nominated to be Director will also be assessed,
taking into account the Company’s corporate strategy and the
mix of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity needed in
the future.

The current Board composition reflects a diverse mix of
educational background, professional knowledge, industry
experience and length of service. The diversity mix of the
Board as at 31 December 2023 is summarized as follows:

(i) Board Composition, Gender Distribution, Age
Distribution and Length of Service

Number of Directors

EFEAH
7
6
5
4
3
) ED Female
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1
0
Designation Gender
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Age Group
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(ii) Directors’ Skills and Experience

(i) EBRFEREE

Number of Share of the
Areas of Experience Directors Board
KL Ez SR [E EFEAY EFEGLE
Related Industry Knowledge/Experience 4 57%
MHRAITENS KR
Business Management 4 57%
BmEEE
Legal/Regulatory 2 29%
EREE
Financial & Accounting 4 57%
SRS
Strategic Planning & Risk Management 7 100%

B BR iR 8 B R b B 1B

The Board's gender diversity level is relatively high compared
to other companies listed on the Stock Exchange, with
four females directors out of seven (57%). During the Year,
the Nomination Committee recommended and the Board
approved a target of having no less than 25% female
directors on the Board. The Nomination Committee was of
the view that the current gender diversity of the Board was
appropriate, balanced and exceeding the target set. Therefore,
no timeline or plan was proposed for further enhancing
the gender diversity target of the Board for the time being.
The Nomination Committee will continue reviewing the
composition of the Board to maintain diversity.

As at 31 December 2023, our total workforce comprised of
69% female and 31% male, whereas senior management
comprised of 70% female and 30% male. The current gender
diversity of workforce was appropriate taking into account the
business models and operational needs.

The term of appointment of the INEDs is subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election provisions under the Articles of
Association of the Company and the Listing Rules. Based on
the annual review conducted by the Nomination Committee,
the Board considered each of them to be independent with
reference to the factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.
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Other than regular Board meetings held during the Year, RAEER > BTEHRTEETZT ZEI > N
additional Board meetings, or meetings of Board committeces R EEZRTHEIZEETT T EZNESTTREREMN
established by the Board to consider specific matters, were I 2 EEFEZEETEH  UBHBFTEEE -
convened, when necessary.

The attendance of the Directors at the meetings during the H®EEBELFEZZ 2B REIIN T
Year is set out below:

Number of meetings attended/held
HEEHE STEERY

Corporate
Executive Audit Remuneration Nomination Governance General
Name of Directors Board Committee = Committee Committee  Committee  Committee Meeting
i1 Bi | 7 tEER

EZNR - Z88 Z8% Z8¢ Z8% ZE® REAE
Executive Directors
WiTES
Ms. Cindy Yeung 4/4(C) 13/13 (C) - - - - 1/1
BmELt
Mr. Ng Koon Keung, Ricky 4/4 13/13 - - - - 1/1
REREE
Mr. Wong Chi Fai 414 13/13 - 2/2 - - il
ESELE
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa 4/4 13/13 - - 11 1/1(C) 1/1
EHELL
Independent Non-executive

Directors
BUFHGTES
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene 4/4 - 3/3 - 1/1(C) 1/1 1/1
B L+
Mr. Liu Hing Hung 4/4 - 3/3(C) 2/2 - 1/1 1/1
BEERSE
Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne 4/4 - 3/8 2/2 (C) 1/1 - 11
BRERLT
Total number of meeting(s) held: 4 13 3 2 1 1 1
BreRzMY:
C: Chairperson/chairman of the Board/committee C. BEEg LEEEXR
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During the Year, the Chairperson held a meeting with INEDs
without the presence of Executive Directors in compliance
with code provision C.2.7 of the CG Code.

The Company had received confirmation from each Director
twice a year that he/she had given sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Company during the Year.
Directors had also disclosed to the Company the changes, if
any, in the number and nature of offices they held in public
companies or organizations and other significant commitment,
including the identity of the public companies or organizations
and an indication of the time involved.

Ms. Cindy Yeung acts as the chairperson of the Board who
provides leadership to the Board. She sets the agenda for
the Board and ensures that members of the Board receive
accurate, timely and clear information, and that matters to
be taken into consideration are given their due weight, so
that sound decisions can be made. With the assistance of
the Company Secretary, the Chairperson ensures that the
Board properly exercises its powers, holds its meetings and
implements procedures in compliance with all rules and
requirements, and full and proper records are maintained.

The day-to-day management of the Group is delegated by the
Board to the CEO, Mr. Koon Keung, Ricky who is responsible
for the Group's strategic planning, business growth and
development. The segregation of duties make the Board and
the operation of the Group function effectively.

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be
considered by the Board which the Board has determined to
be material, the matter will be dealt with by a physical Board
meeting rather than a written resolution. That Director will
abstain from voting on the relevant Board resolution and he/
she shall not be counted in the quorum present at such Board
meeting.

Procedures are also put in place for each Director to have
access to supporting papers and relevant information for
each scheduled meeting. All Directors also have access to the
services of the Company Secretary and her team, and may
take independent professional advice upon request, at the
Company's expense.
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Newly appointed Directors will receive a comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on appointment. Besides,
the Company provides Directors with regular updates on
changes to and developments of the Group's business, and
on the latest developments in the laws, rules and regulations
relating to Directors’ duties and responsibilities to help
them make informed decisions and discharge their duties
and responsibilities as Directors. Such materials will also be
provided to newly appointed Directors subsequently after their
appointment as Directors.

During the Year, each Director participated in continuous
professional development by attending seminars/workshops/
reading materials on the following topics to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills and provided a record of
training to the Company.

Name of Directors

R ERRE

MEANEFHAEESRKESEZE  EXHR
FETHRMERN o Fob > KRBT M AERE
BREFRER UARERESFHBEREE
AR RUARGANRTERENAES
RUHEHER > UHBERFFERMBERE
FETEFAREENBBREE - MEESR
EZER TREARDHEHEHZEFMEES
AREHR -

REFE > KSEFHUE2HEFTEEXER
PREEERMUTIEZEXE TEH/
REME > UWERRERRS ZHH R BHE
I ERAAT R E o

Topics of training covered

EENR BEZIEINERE

Ms. Cindy Yeung (1) corporate governance
BBt TEER

Mr. Ng Koon Keung, Ricky (2) finance

R iE 1%

Mr. Wong Chi Fai
mEERE

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa

EHE R+

T
B8

Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene
PRIE IS 2+

Mr. Liu Hing Hung
BEERTE

Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne
PRER XL

(3) industry-specific
TE AR

(4) regulatory
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BOARD COMMITTEES EFXEZEET

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate AW EFTeRITHEHRSRIEEENERE
effective management, certain functions of the Board have EZEE THACHEZZZRTFHTZEZE
been delegated by the Board to the Executive Committee, & - BIZEZEZ - HNEZEET - RLEZET
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Kt 2EAEEC -FTAEEEZEG 25
Committee and Corporate Governance Committee. Clear ZEBHESHBECRETFLEZET 2EBEMN
written terms of reference of all the Board Committees are & °

given to the respective members of these Committees.

The Executive Committee consists of all the Executive
Directors during the Year, namely Ms. Cindy Yeung
(Chairperson of the Committee), Mr. Ng Koon Keung,
Ricky, Mr. Wong Chi Fai and Ms. Fan Man Seung,
Vanessa. It has all powers and authorities of the Board to
manage day-to-day operation of the business of the Group
in accordance with its terms of reference except the
following major matters as set out in a "Formal Schedule
on matters reserved for and delegated by the Board":

i. determining the Group's objectives and strategies;

ii. approving annual and interim results and financial
reporting;

iii. declaring or recommending payment of dividends or
other distributions;

iv. approving major changes that require notification by
announcement under the Listing Rules;

v. approving publication of announcements for notifiable
transactions (except for discloseable transactions in
relation to lease transactions recognizing the right-of-
use asset according to HKFRS 16 “Leases”) under the
Listing Rules;

vi. approving non-exempt connected transactions/non-
exempted continuing connected transactions (other
than those transactions took place from time to time
under the master agreement(s) previously approved
by the Board/Shareholders (as the case may be))
under the Listing Rules; and

vii. approving major capital restructuring and issue of
new securities of the Company.
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To advise and assist the Executive Committee on the
formulation and implementation of the environment, social
and governance (“ESG") initiatives of the Group, a sub-
committee under the Executive Committee known as the
ESG Committee was set up. The ESG Committee consists
of representatives from operations and supporting
departments and the Executive Committee. It has the
powers and authorities as delegated by the Executive
Committee to formulate and execute relevant ESG action
plan, and assess and make recommendations on matters
concerning the Group's sustainability development and
ESG risks and opportunities.

The Audit Committee consists of three INEDs during
the Year, namely Mr. Liu Hing Hung (Chairman of the
Committee), Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene and the late Ms.
Chan Wiling, Yvonne.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee
are set out in its terms of reference which include duties
specified in the CG Code and are posted on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

A summary of work performed by the Audit Committee
during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed with the management, finance personnel
and/or the external auditor the effectiveness of audit
process and the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, and the accuracy and fairness
of the annual consolidated financial statements for the
financial year ended 31 December 2022 (“Pervious
Year”) and the interim consolidated financial
statements for the six months ended 30 June 2023;

i. reviewed with the senior management and finance
personnel the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group for the
Previous Year;

iii. performed annual review of the non-exempt CCTs of
the Group for the Previous Year;

iv. recommended to the Board on the re-appointment
of independent auditor at the 2023 annual general
meeting ("2023 AGM");

R ERRE

RERATEEERFERBERAERN
RBE -HEgkER(ERE -HEREARD
B D ERHEZEZ AW ERILNIT
ZEETEBZEg  BARR 8K
EREBEG - RIE -HEKREREZEY
MEZHEXFHFIUARRTZESTHAR
KEN - HEEHTZEEERTHRES
R REPR > LURIE X M ITHBNIRE « 1
GRERTEE U BARAEERT
?#%Eé*@&faiﬁ\%iﬁ&@é%ﬂﬁﬁéﬁi%%
BRNEEETTGRIELERE -

REFE  BEREZEETH=-LBILIFN
TEFER BN ABEEREE(ZE
EZE) RERLEIREBERIR LT -

BERZEENTIEZEACRBAESHNER
BELE  HREEEEERTRIGTHEY
BE > TEEHNE A RARTEIL o

BRZZEERNAFEAMBITZ ISR
ZEIMT:

. HEBE -WHBABERFIIEZ
Y BERAEBMREMNC2EZER
RestRARERE Z MM, I ER
B E2022F 128318 LB BEE (TE
FENZFEGZAUBEREX2REE
2023F6H30H L ANERAZHHBES
MmN ERSE KA TS

i. AESREEERMBAERSLE
EXAEERREERANBEIZERS
Z\.&)&;

i. HAEERLFEZIFBRITER
BREETFEER;

iv. Tt HY20238% B B F K g (12023 &
BEADZ)) - EHSEEIEIIZEED
RMEETRHEES,

EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED # 2% EHMR AT P37

2023 ANNUAL REPORT £E $§




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERBRE

P.38

v. reviewed the audit fees and the fees for non-audit
services payable to the independent auditor;

vi. approved the audit plan for the Year, reviewed
the independence of the independent auditor and
approved its engagement; and

vii. reviewed the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting function.

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members
during the Year, namely the late Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne
(Chairperson of the Committee) and Mr. Liu Hing Hung,
both being INEDs, and Mr. Wong Chi Fai, being an
Executive Director.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration
Committee are set out in its terms of reference which
include duties specified in the CG Code and are posted on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the Directors' fees and made recommendation
to the Board for approval;

ii. reviewed the current remuneration structure/package
of the Executive Directors and senior management
and recommended the Board to approve their specific
packages; and

iii. reviewed the terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee and made recommendation to the Board
for approval.

Before recommendation to the Board, the Remuneration
Committee has reviewed and assessed the remuneration
package of the Directors with reference to the Group's
operating results, duties and level of responsibility of the
Directors and the prevailing market conditions. Details of
the remuneration of each of the Directors for the Year are
set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.
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The Nomination Committee consists of three members
during the Year, namely Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene
(Chairperson of the Committee) and the late Ms. Chan
Wiling, Yvonne, both being INEDs, and Ms. Fan Man
Seung, Vanessa, being the Executive Director.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination
Committee are set out in its terms of reference which
include duties specified in the CG Code and are posted on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for formulating
policy and making recommendations to the Board on
nomination, appointment and re-appointment of Directors,
and Board succession pursuant to the Nomination Policy
adopted by the Company.

The Nomination Policy aims at assisting the Nomination
Committee in identifying and nominating suitable
candidates for directorship based on the Board Diversity
Policy and sets out the nomination criteria and the
nomination procedures for (i) nominating new Director
to fill a casual vacancy on the Board; (ii) making
recommendation to Directors and Shareholders regarding
any Director proposed for election or re-election at
general meeting; and (iii) nomination by Shareholders on
election of new Director.

The Nomination Committee may identify potential
candidates from any source as it may consider
appropriate and evaluate them by considering various
factors, including their professional expertise, industry
and business experience, time commitments, potential
contributions to board diversity, material conflict of
interest with the Group (if any) and independence (for
INEDs). The Committee will then make recommendation
of suitable candidates to the Board for consideration
of appointment. In case of re-appointment of existing
Directors who will retire at annual general meetings
("AGM(s)"), the Committee will review the rotation and
retirement of Directors and make recommendations to the
Board accordingly.

R ERRE
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A summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity
of the Board;

i. reviewed the Board Diversity Policy;

ii. reviewed the mechanisms implemented regarding
independent views to the Board;

iv. reviewed the independence of the INEDs;

v. reviewed Directors’ time commitment in performing
their duties as Directors;

vi. made recommendation to the Board on the re-
election of Directors at the 2023 AGM; and

vii. made recommendation to the Board on the gender
diversity target at Board level.

The Corporate Governance Committee (“CG Committee”)
consists of five members, namely Ms. Fan Man Seung,
Vanessa (Chairperson of the Committee), being an
Executive Director, Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene and Mr.
Liu Hing Hung, both being INEDs, a representative from
company secretarial function and a representative from
finance and accounts function.

The specific written terms of reference of the CG
Committee is available on the Company’'s website. The
primary duties of the CG Committee are (a) developing
and reviewing the policies and practices on corporate
governance of the Company (“CG Policy”) and making
recommendations to the Board; (b) reviewing and
monitoring the policies and practices of the Company
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
(c) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of
conduct applicable to Directors and relevant employees
of the Group regarding dealings in the Company’s
securities; (d) reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management; and (e) reviewing the Company's
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
annual report.
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A summary of the work performed by the CG Committee
during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the CG Policy and made recommendation to
the Board;

ii. reviewed the policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

iii. reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

iv. reviewed the said code of conduct applicable to
Directors and relevant employees of the Group
regarding securities transactions; and

v. reviewed the Company's compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in Corporate Governance Report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the Year, the Company Secretary, being an employee of
the Company, had duly complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules by taking no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS OF DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the EWJ Securities Code as its own
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors
on no less exacting terms than the required standards as set
out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules regarding the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.
Having made specific enquiry to all Directors, all of them
confirmed that they had complied with the required standard
of dealings as set out in the EWJ Securities Code throughout
the Year.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities to prepare
the annual consolidated financial statements of the Group and
other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules.
The management has provided all members of the Board with
monthly updates on internal consolidated financial statements
which give a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group's performance, position and prospects.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the Year,
the Board had adopted appropriate accounting policies and
applied them consistently, made judgment and estimates that
were prudent and reasonable and ensured the consolidated
financial statements are prepared on a “going concern” basis
(with supporting assumptions or qualifications as necessary)
and showed a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group for the Year. The management had provided sufficient
explanation and information to the Board on the consolidated
financial statements to enable it to make an informed
assessment of the financial and other information put before
it for approval. The independent auditor of the Company had
made a statement about their reporting responsibilities in the
Independent Auditor's Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Internal control is fundamental to the successful operation and
day-to-day running of a business and it assists a company
in achieving its business objectives. Internal control policies
and procedures within the Group are updated regularly with
the primary objective of providing general guidance and
recommendations on a basic framework of risk management
and internal control systems (“Control Systems”).

A review has been conducted on (i) the Group's internal
control measures and procedures covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls; and (ii) risk management functions in its principal
subsidiaries of the Company for the Year.
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The Board is responsible to ensure that the Group EEeaERGRAEERIIAEREE
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective RERZGEEZG ZEHEERFER
Control Systems. Such Control systems are designed to EIEMIFHFRARS LEZ%?‘EFZJ—LF“ )
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure to achieve TEMEARERRANIBREHS
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but MIFBERE o
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or
loss.
The key objectives of the Control Systems include: ERERfoETEZEEEE:
e safeguarding assets; s REEE;
e ensuring completeness, accuracy and validity of e MRUBZEHBEBREZIZTEM £
financial records and reports; MM RA M
e promoting adherence to policies, procedures, e REBTHR -BF - ZEZRRERE;
regulations and laws; and Y54
e promoting effectiveness and efficiency of operations. e RBELEWTMERMENM -
(1) Governance Control (1) EELER
The control structure of the Control Systems is set out EERGNBEEREEHINT:
as follows:
The Board EFE
e responsible for the overall Control Systems and e BEEREEERHULERHESR
reviewing their effectiveness; LY
e oversee the Control Systems on an ongoing basis s HERZESCWHTHEEES
with the assistance of Audit Committee; BERSR,
e ensure the maintenance of appropriate and e MREBEZEZAMKHEFTABEREN
effective Control Systems; i
e define management structure with clear lines of e HITEHEEARERNEIRE
responsibility and limit of authority; and BE &
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5

determine the nature and extent of significant
risks (including risks ESG) that the Group
is willing to take in achieving the strategic
objectives and formulate the Group's risk
management strategies.

Audit Committee

review and discuss the Control Systems with
the management annually to ensure that the
management has performed its duty to maintain
effective Control Systems. This discussion
also includes the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions;

review the nature and extent of significant risks
(including ESG risks), and the Group's ability
to respond to changes in its business and the
external environment;

consider major findings on internal control
matters (if any) raised by internal auditors and
make recommendations to the Board; and

review and discuss annually with significant
control failings or weaknesses that are identified
by the internal and external auditors.

Executive Committee

review the effectiveness of ESG-related risk
management and internal control systems and
report to the Audit Committee for its review.
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The management (includes CEQ, heads of
business units, departments and divisions)

e design and implement the Control Systems’
policies and procedures duly endorsed by senior
management and the Board;

e monitor the Control Systems properly and ensure
the Control Systems are executed effectively;

e monitor risks and take measures to mitigate risks
in day-to-day operations;

e give prompt responses to, and follow up the
findings on internal control matters raised by
internal or independent auditors; and

e provide confirmation to the Board on the
effectiveness of the Control Systems.

Internal Audit Department

e carry out the analysis and independent appraisal
of adequacy and effectiveness of the Control
Systems in respect of all material controls,
including operational, financial and compliance
aspects;

e alert the management on the audit review
findings or irregularities and advise them on the
implementation of necessary steps and actions to
enhance the internal controls of the Group; and

e report the results of internal audit reviews and
agreed action plans to the Audit Committee and
the Board on regular basis.
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(2) Operational Control

During the Year, the management had analyzed
the control environment, identified risks pertaining
thereto, and implemented various controls therein as
follows:

Approach taken: The management communicates
with relevant staff members, reviews relevant
documentation of the Control Systems and
evaluates findings of any deficiencies in the
design of the Group's Control Systems, then
provides recommendations for improvement and
assesses the effectiveness of implementation
of such recommendations, where appropriate.
The scope and findings of review on the Control
Systems have been reported to and reviewed by
the Audit Committee annually.

Information flow: The transparent information
flow alerts the management promptly of any
deviations. Benchmarking with historical
database and comparisons with the same also
acts as a detecting device for spotting unusual
activities.

Procedure manuals and operational
guidelines: To safeguard the assets against
unauthorized use or disposition and ensure
maintenance of proper accounting records that
are in compliance with the applicable laws,
rules and regulations for the provision of reliable
financial information (for internal use and/or
external publication).

Management information system and
technology: To control over the business
activities, it allows close tracking of various
inputs and outputs of the Group’s business such
as raw materials, inventories, products, customer
information and human resources. It also
tracks audit trails in the authorization system,
under which permissions and responsibility of
authorization are clearly identified and adequate
records can be maintained in the Control
Systems.
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Vi,

Vii.

viii,
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Reports and variance analysis: Reports
and analysis of each operating segment in the
upstream, midstream and downstream are
conducted on a regular basis such that the
performance of each operating segment can be
easily accessible.

Safeguarding of assets: To safeguard shops’
assets, security systems are installed and
properly maintained in good condition at each
shop. In addition, tests are carried out on a
regular basis to ensure the proper functioning
of the security systems and implementation of
internal control procedures in daily operations.
Daily stock count for each shop, regular and
surprise stock counts are arranged by the shop
managers, Assurance Team and Finance &
Accounts Department respectively. Annual stock
count is also carried out by external auditors.
Insurance coverage on inventory is periodically
reviewed by the management for sufficient
coverage, and to ensure compliance with the
terms and conditions of the insurance policies.

Quality control: Diamonds are either sent
to authoritative and reliable organizations for
assessment and certification or are tested
internally with our own professional equipment
to assure the quality fulfills good standard
requirement. Besides, gold products are sent to
authoritative precious metal laboratory to test the
contents on sample and regular basis. In order
to provide assurance of high quality products
and services and to enhance the protection of
our customers’ interest, the Company had joined
several associations and schemes.

Proper authorization on sales discounts:
Discount policies are properly maintained and
controlled by electronic point-of-sales systems.
Discount policies and pricing strategy are
reviewed from time to time.

Vi,

vii,

viii,
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(3) Financial Control

Vi,

Vii.

Proper controls are in place for the recording
of complete, accurate and timely accounting and
management information;

Annual budget and quarterly forecast on
all capital and revenue items are prepared and
approved by the management before being
adopted;

The management monitors the business activities
closely and reviews monthly financial results of
operations against budgets/forecasts;

Regular reports on revenue, trade receivables’
ageing and debtors’ ageing and internal financial
reports are prepared to the management which
give a balanced and understandable assessment
of the Group's financial performance;

Monthly updates on internal financial statements
are provided to all Directors which give a balanced
and understandable assessment of the Group's
performance, financial position and prospects in
sufficient details;

Annual audit by external auditor is carried out to
ensure that the consolidated financial statements
are prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, the Group's
accounting policies and the applicable laws and
regulations; and

Daily available fund report is reviewed to
monitor the cash flows against budgets/forecasts.
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(4) Compliance Control

The following policies and procedures are in place to
safeguard the compliance controls:

Systems and procedures on disclosure of
inside information to ensure, with the assistance
of an internal work team (if required), that
any material information which comes to the
knowledge of any one or more officers should
be promptly identified, assessed and escalated,
where appropriate, for the attention of the
Board. The Board shall make timely decisions
on disclosure, if necessary and take appropriate
measures to preserve confidentiality of inside
information until proper dissemination of inside
information;

Policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements which shall
be reviewed and monitored regularly by the CG
Committee as delegated by the Board in order
to ensure the Group is in compliance with all the
applicable laws, statutes, rules and regulations;
and to keep up on any legal developments;

Continuing Connected Transactions Compliance
Committee is established to monitor, control
and regularly review connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions of the Group
and ensure proper compliance with all relevant
laws and regulations, the Listing Rules and
disclosure requirements;

Whistle-blowing policy is established to provide
reporting channels and guidance for employees
and related third parties who have business
dealings with the Group (e.g. customers and
suppliers) to raise concerns, in confidence and
anonymity, about any suspected misconduct
or malpractice within the Company. The Audit
Committee, delegated by the Board, shall ensure
that proper arrangements are in place for fair and
independent investigation of any concerns raised,
appropriate follow up actions are taken and other
recommendations are provided, if thinks fit;
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v. Anti-corruption policy is established to outline v REFHERETHIE  HEPMA
the Group's zero-tolerance stance against EEHBERNESHNERTIUE »
bribery and corruption and assists employees W% Bh B T # 5 7] 8 & 5 & Ll
in recognising circumstances that may lead FRETH T EEEETANE
to or give the appearance of being involved B W G LR AR 2R IE W T
in corruption or unethical business conduct, BOMRBEFRESKRIEEY
so as to avoid such conduct which is clearly ABEENRERENEREE
prohibited, and to promptly seek guidance where RETPNEBEERNESEN
necessary or report any reasonably suspected FEMREE ;
case of corruption or any attempts thereof, to the
management through an appropriate reporting
channel;

vi. Anti-money laundering and counter-terrorist vii ITBEBREGDFERZEELR
financing policy and procedures is established BEKREFETHIE > HiTBT
to set out the general framework for combating EABRRBHMEZEMEILEN
crime against money laundering and financing of HEREEZR > WwiRMHIESIIT B K E
terrorism. It provides guideline to combat money R ERNIEE A& 0 LUHED
laundering and terrorist and help the Group's rEBEEHNLATFHEEES
employees identify and assess clients/customers/ R LR B ERME RN
suppliers/vendors/contractors/transactions/ HMESEmMILENER BE M
activities of high risk of money laundering, Em/ Bh/ REH/ X5/ 7E
terrorist financing or other financial crime and o THREBEENREERTE;
take appropriate measures and actions; and Yid

vii. Dealers in Precious Metals and Stones viih BEEBREAXZEBEGEM

Category B Registration has been granted
by the Commissioner of Customs and Excise
pursuant to the Anti-Money Laundering and
Counter-Terrorist Financing (“AML/CFT")
Ordinance (Cap. 615). A Category B Registrant
("CBR") shall conduct Customer Due Diligence
measures and record-keeping when carrying
out any cash transaction(s) with total value of or
above HK$120,000 in Hong Kong.
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Concerning the nature, size and complexity of
our businesses and the money laundering and
terrorist financing (“ML/TF") risks arising from
our businesses, the following AML/CFT systems
have been implemented:

e compliance management arrangements;

e an independent audit function;

e employee screening procedures; and

e an ongoing employee training programme.

To highlight the compliance management
arrangements, they facilitate the CBR to
implement AML/CFT systems to comply with
relevant legal and regulatory obligations as well
as to manage ML/TF risks effectively. They
include oversight by CBR's senior management,
and appointment of a Compliance Officer and a
Money Laundering Reporting Officer.

Responsibilities of the above three roles are as
follows:

e Senior management: Responsible for
implementing effective AML/CFT systems
that can adequately manage the ML/TF risks
identified.

e Compliance Officer: Act as the focal point
within a CBR for the oversight of all activities
relating to the prevention and detection of
ML/TF, and providing support and guidance
to the senior management to ensure that
ML/TF risks are adequately identified,
understood and managed.

e Money Laundering Reporting Officer:
As a central reference point for reporting
suspicious transactions and also as the main
point of contact with the Joint Financial
Intelligence Unit (JFIU) and law enforcement
agencies.
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Review of Internal Controls 1% 59 PN 25 &5 1
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Effectiveness of internal controls is tested by Internal
Audit Department regularly. Internal audit reviews and
agreed action plans should be reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board on timely basis.

(1) EAkEEZEEF

(1) Risk Management Process

The Management regularly reviews overall risks faced
by the Group and changes in market environment. The
risk management process includes risk identification,
risk evaluation, risk management measures and risk
control and review.

The management is entrusted with duties to identify,
analyse, evaluate, respond, monitor and communicate
risks associated with any activity, function or process
within its scope of responsibility and authority.
Risks are evaluated by the Board and management
based on (i) the severity of the impact of the risk
on the Group's financial results; (ii) the probability
and frequency that the risks will occur; and (iii) the
velocity or speed at which risks can occur.

Based on the risk evaluation, the Group will manage
the risks as follows:

e Risk elimination - The management may
identify and implement certain changes or
controls that in effect eliminate the risk entirely.

e Risk mitigation - The management may
implement risk mitigation plan designed to reduce
the likelihood, velocity or severity of the risk to an
acceptable level or contingency plan for possible
loss scenarios.

e Risk control and monitoring - It involves
making decisions regarding which risks are
acceptable and how to address those that are
not. Accidents and other situations involving loss
or near-loss will be investigated and properly
documented as part of the effort to manage risks.
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e Risk retention - The management may decide
that the risk rating is low enough that the risk is
acceptable level and no action is required and the
risk will continue to be monitored as part of the
risk management program to ensure the level of
risk does not increase to an unacceptable level.

(2) Significant Risks and Strategies

Certain significant risks have been identified through
the process of risk identification and assessment.
Such significant risks of the Group and their
respective key level and key control measures are set
out below:

a) Decline in tourists’ arrivals and
consumption demand resulted from
downturn in economic condition

Facing the unfavourable market situation, the
Group:

e proactively manages the Group's geographical
presence and develops alternative sales
channels including e-commerce and also
explores new on-line payment solution;

e optimises business operations and shops
establishments in Hong Kong and Mainland
China;

e develops market diversification beyond Hong
Kong market; and

e decisively takes stringent cost control measures
including human resources streamline plan,
negotiation for rental concession, retail network
optimisation exercises.
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b) Damage to brand name and reputation

In addition to advertising and promotional efforts
in strengthening our brand image, the Group has
also given much attention to:

e register of brand name and major jewellery
product collection names;

e conduct customer service training and
mystery shopper reviews to ensure sales staff
service standards;

e maintain product quality by various means
from vendor selection to quality check upon
delivery from vendors; and

e brand name infringements which are followed
up by legal department until completely
resolved.

Reliance on major suppliers and watch
brands

In fact, the Group's success largely rides on its
relationship with the world’s giant watch suppliers
and top-tier brands. The loss of key brands may
adversely affect the Group's business. To cope
with this, the Group:

e centralizes communication with major watch
brands suppliers within top management
and continue to maintain watch brand
diversification;

e develops and maintains mutually beneficial
and long-term relationship with all suppliers;

e continues to build up our own jewellery
brands; and

e arranges senior sales staff inspecting all
watches delivered to shops.
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d) Excess and shortage of watch inventory

e)

The Group strives to be leading retailer in brands
that have higher consumer appreciation and
consequently stronger profit yield. In order to
achieve this leading position, we:

e maintain close business relationship and
communication with watch manufacturers to
strive for optimal and timely supply; and

e systematically review inventory with updated
sales forecasts to determine appropriate
inventory level.

Substandard design and production of
Jjewellery

The Group's strategy is to yield higher gross
margin and avoid price competition with other
market players. As such, quality of our jewellery
and highly regarded designs are vital.

e The Group maintains a high quality design
team with good market trend knowledge,
measured by effectiveness of successful
product design launched.

e Merchandising managers, design managers,
sales operation managers and shop
representatives review all jewellery design
before approval by CEO for production.

e Production vendors selection and regular
quality performance review are conducted by
merchandising managers, technical manager
and in some cases jewellery design manager.

e Merchandising managers, technical manager
and in some cases design manager inspect
jewellery product mold and first sample
before bulk production.

e All jewellery products must pass through
quality inspection by quality control team and
shop front sales team.
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e Scanning of diamond by equipment is
used to avoid receiving synthetic diamonds
and procure diamonds from international
renowned suppliers.

e Higher value jewellery products are tested
by reputable and commonly recognized
third-party laboratories who issue testing

certificates.

f) Stable supply of raw materials at fair price
In order to maintain our timely replenishment and
new product launch, we secure reliable sourcing

by:

e adopting systematic vendor selection
process; and

e regularly reviewing and exploring more
attractive sources.

g) Stock loss or theft

Since our stock items are easily concealable,

the Group places very much attention on

safeguarding them with all practicable measures

as follows:

e CCTV monitoring and back up;

e daily stock-take at shops;

e procedures and approval requirements for
stock transfer, and use of security guarded

service;

e security systems for stock locations; and

° insurance coverage.
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h) Anti-money laundering

Non-compliance with applicable anti-money
laundering laws would adversely affect the
Group's business and reputation. We shall:

e ensure anti-money laundering policy and
guidelines are in place;

e enforce the relevant internal control
procedures in all shops and assist sales
personnel to be familiar with "know your
customers” approach;

e stay alert to the industrial practices and co-
operates with banks on case investigation;
and

e  provide regular training to the staff.

The Board will make sure that the risks faced by
the Group shall be reviewed regularly, and the
management will take suitable measures to deal with
them on an ongoing basis.
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The Board acknowledged that it had received a
confirmation from the management on the effectiveness
of the Control Systems of the Group for the Year. The
Audit Committee and the Board, upon reviewing the
Control Systems, were not aware of any significant issues
that would have an adverse impact on the effectiveness
and adequacy of the Group's operational, financial and
compliance areas of the Control Systems.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company had adopted a dividend policy setting out the
principles for the Board to determine appropriate amount of
dividend to be distributed to the Shareholders. The Company
intends to provide Shareholders with regular interim and
final dividends (as the case may be) based on the earnings
attribution to its Shareholders after taking into consideration of
the factors as stated in the policy, including inter alia, (i) cash
flow requirements for business operations; (ii) cash available,
financial liabilities and capital commitment; (iii) market
environment and challenges; and (iv) future development
and investment opportunities. The declaration of dividends
or recommendation on such payment shall be subject to all
applicable laws, rules and regulations including but not limited
to the Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (“CQO") and the Articles of Association
of the Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company’s Shareholders’ Communication Policy (available
on the website of the Company) sets out the strategies,
practices and commitment for maintaining ongoing and
effective communication with Shareholders, both individual
and institutional, and in appropriate circumstances, the
investment community at large so as to enable them to
engage with the Company and exercise their rights as
shareholders in an informed manner. To this end, the Company
strives to ensure that all Shareholders have ready and timely
access to all publicly available information of the Group.
To facilitate communication with Shareholders and the
investment community, the Company has established various
communication channels, as follows: (i) the holding of AGMs
and extraordinary general meetings, if any, which may be
convened for specific purposes which provide opportunities
to the Shareholders to communicate directly with the Board;
(ii) the publication of announcements, annual reports, interim
reports and/or circulars as required under the Listing Rules
and press releases providing updated information of the Group;
(iii) the availability of latest information of the Group on the
Company's website at https://www.EmperorWatchJewellery.
com; (iv) the holding of press conference(s) from time to time;
and (v) meeting with investors and analysts on a regular basis
and participate investor road shows and sector conferences.

Regular dialogue with institutional Shareholders and
general presentations are made when financial results are
announced. Shareholders and investors are welcome to visit
the Company’s website to raise enquiries through our Investor
Relations Department whose contact details are available on
the Company's website and the "Corporate Information and
Key Dates” section of this annual report.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings for
substantially separate issues, including re-election of retiring
Directors. The Company's notice to Shareholders for AGM s
sent to Shareholders at least 21 days before the meeting and
notices of all other general meetings are sent to Shareholders
at least 14 days before the meetings. The Chairperson of the
Board and chairperson/members of the Board Committees,
appropriate management executives and the independent
auditor are available to attend the general meetings to answer
questions from the Shareholders. With the assistance of the
Company Secretary, the Chairperson of the meeting explains
the procedures for conducting a poll voting during the
meeting.
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The Company shall review the Shareholders’ Communication
Policy annually to ensure its implementation and effectiveness.
Having considered the multiple channels of communication
and engagement in place, the Board is satisfied that the
Shareholders’ Communication Policy has been properly in
place during the Year and remains effective.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the
Shareholders as required to be disclosed pursuant to the CG
Code:

Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting
rights of all the Shareholders having a right to vote at general
meetings may send a request to the Company pursuant to
Section 566 of the CO. The request must state the general
nature of the business to be dealt with at the meeting, and
may include the text of resolution that may properly be moved
and is intended to be moved at the meeting. Requests may
consist of several documents in like form. A request may
be sent to the Company for the attention of the Company
Secretary in hard copy form or in electronic form and must be
authenticated by the relevant Shareholder(s). Having verified
request, the Board will convene a general meeting within 21
days. Such meeting must be held on a date not more than 28
days after the date of the notice convening the meeting and
such notice must include notice of the resolution.

Section 568 of the CO provides that if the Directors do not
within 21 days as stated above to call a general meeting, the
Shareholders representing more than one half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may themselves call a general
meeting, but the meeting so convened must be called for
a date not more than 3 months after the Directors become
subject to the requirement to call a meeting. The meeting must
be called in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in
which that meeting is required to be called by the Directors.
The business that may be dealt with at the meeting includes
a resolution to be dealt with at the meeting. All reasonable
expenses incurred by the Shareholders of this purpose must
be reimbursed by the Company.
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Section 615 of the CO provides that (i) Shareholder(s)
representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all
Shareholders; or (ii) at least 50 Shareholders having a right to
vote on the resolution at the AGM may request the Company
to circulate a notice of a resolution to be properly moved or
is intended to be moved at that meeting. Such request must
identify the resolution to be moved at the AGM, must be
authenticated by the relevant Shareholder(s) and sent to the
Company for the attention of the Company Secretary in hard
copy form or in electronic form not later than 6 weeks before
the relevant AGM or if later, the time when the notice of AGM
is despatched.

The procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director are available for viewing on the
Company’s website.

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company's share registrar, Tricor
Secretaries Limited. Other Shareholders’ enquiries can be
directed to the Investor Relations Department of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

For the purpose of (i) providing more flexibility to the
Company in relation to the conduct of general meetings,
including allowing the general meetings to be held as a
hybrid meeting or a virtual meeting in addition to a physical
meeting; (ii) explicitly setting out other related powers of the
Board and the chairman of the general meetings, including
making arrangements for attendance and voting at general
meeting, as well as ensuring the security and orderly conduct
of general meetings; and (iii) making other consequential and
housekeeping amendments, the Company adopted a new
articles of association (“New Articles of Association") during
the Year. The adoption of the New Articles of Association was
approved by the Shareholders at the 2023 AGM. The New
Articles of Association is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the
independence of the auditor to ensure objectivity and the
effectiveness of the audit process of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with applicable standards. Members
of the Audit Committee were of the view that Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tomatsu (“Deloitte”) is independent and had
recommended the Board to propose its re-appointment as the
Company's independent auditor at the 2024 AGM. During the
Year, Deloitte had rendered audit services and certain non-
audit services to the Group and the remuneration paid/payable
to it by the Group is set out as follows:

Services rendered

% BN 2 Bt R &
BREESEEERBEAZENBHEE

ER#MzBLM UBEREABRERES
H??%E%Z@%ﬁlﬁ&ﬁ?ﬁlléo%7@%%%5}2
ERD BH-BMERAS gstMT((1EE) B
ﬁ%_LAj:’IEF]%%ﬁ"T’EHH&ﬁ%E%%’ﬁG
0UFRREBFAGLEZEREAERSERT
ZHEIUZEBE c RAFER BHEOELE
EREZBRBRE TIEZERS > MAE
EEfM BT RZMEHIIMT:

Fees paid/payable

FR £% 14 AR #5 gft E&EB

HK$'000
F#ET

Audit services 3,036

R R

Non-audit services:

IR AR5

- Agreed- upon procedures for continuing connected transactions 190

HEREXZEWERRF
- Review of preliminary results announcement 10

BRVNTZERAS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Deloitte.

TO THE MEMBERS OF

EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED
HEERHERRAA

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 70 to 151, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of material accounting policy
information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code"),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matter
FREIZEIE

Valuation of inventories - Jewelleries held for resale

REZEER

FAREZFESTIZEMTOHERHNE T > EE
HEGEMBREAPTREENFTEH - AZHEMITR
BERERGAEMBRREBLESERMILEERER
MASMIEEFFHEEFERER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

TZHEMITMAEEMRBERER

FE—IFIFBEXKE Z14E

We identified the valuation of inventories - jewelleries
held for resale as a key audit matter due to the
significance of the balance to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, combined
with the judgement and estimation associated
with determining the amount of write-down for
inventories.
AZBEATREFE—FFEEREZHER —E
FREZEE REERHEGREGGMBRERE
EBMET2EE2 TIHKEBEEFEMRATERH
Z F i Rt 5t o

In estimating the amount of write-down for
inventories - jewelleries held for resale, it is the
Group's policy to review the net realisable value
of inventories periodically with reference to the
condition of the items and the market condition.
The management of the Group reviews regularly the
suitability of the write-down policy and the amount
of write-down for inventories that are based on the
estimation by considering factors as detailed in
the note 4 to the consolidated financial statements
in relation to the write-down for inventories. In
addition, the management appoints an independent
professional gemmologist to perform valuation on
certain jewellery items as reference for write-down
consideration.
REsFEE-—FIFEEREZMASER > 88
ErBRASEZBERAATRAERRESNFEZ
AERFE EEEEEENRERGEUBER
K FAFHBERMEFEMR 2EBREMMEZ 5t
EHMA MR RZBEM REFEEMB T L5 -
EEETZE—RBUEXEAETMUHE TK
EEBETHEFAMBREZRE Z2%E -
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Our procedures in relation to evaluating the
appropriateness of valuation of inventories -
jewelleries held for resale included:
AZEMOTHEEFE-—RFEEREZAEREN
ZEFEE:

e Obtaining an understanding of management's
process of reviewing and evaluating net
realisable value of inventories;

s THEEERSANGLFENERFEZER,

e Evaluating the write-down policy adopted by
the management with reference to current
market conditions, historical and current sales
information, pricing policy and strategies, costs
necessary to sell inventories, inventory realisation
plan, ageing and conditions of inventories;

e ZERTHR -BEREAMBHEEN  EBK
RERRBE - HEFENMNENES s FEZTFE
g~ 7 ERVEREL KR O 5T 15 B 1 B PR R 4 B il
BBUR
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS - continued AR EZEIE-~&

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

PEEZER FZYUMITMAEEMBEREE

Valuation of inventories - Jewelleries held for resale
FE—FFBEERXEIHE

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial e  Evaluating net realisable value of inventories

statements, as at 31 December 2023, the carrying assessed by management, on a sample basis,
amount of inventories - jewelleries held for with reference to the selling prices of similar
resale is HK$2,496,990,000, net of write-down of products;

HK$56,177,000, which represents 50% of the net e E.?TEr‘:fi}'”%ﬂiﬁﬁuuzﬁé’iﬁﬁh ST & B9
assets of the Group. B0 &R FE;

Mz M B RERWE4PTIKE > 702023F 128318 »
FE-FFEERE 2 REES2496,990,00087c > o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and

B FRIRS56,177,0008 L HER EHEEEEZF objectivity of the independent professional

B 250% ° gemmologist and obtaining an understanding of
the scope of work and the terms of engagement;
and

s TMEBUBXBLETHZAH  EOKFEMN
WYMHETFREREZBRER, &

e Understanding the valuation process carried out
by the independent professional gemmologist
on selected jewellery items and checking the
carrying amounts of selected jewellery items
to the jewellery appraisal report to test if these
items were recorded at lower of cost and net
realisable value.

e THREBEUSXERLRETMMAMGMEREREIE
BRNEFUERRKETGHRETEREEKRS
HEREE HRAETORNAETESTEFE
ZBRIEER & o

EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED #2E#x%EHMR AT P65

2023 ANNUAL REPORT £ 3R




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Yo 37 R BRI R

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS - continued

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS - continued

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor's report is Wong, Ka .

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

19 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A o 18 2 B LA 2 T LA W 3R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

2023 2022
NOTES HKS$'000 HK$'000
B 5 F#ET FHET
Revenue N 5 4,823,223 3,684,261
Cost of sales & B A& (3,372,942) (2,506,999)
Gross profit EH 1,450,281 1,177,262
Other income H g A 6 14,802 9,828
Selling and distribution expenses HEMDHMBAX (932,960) (765,201)
Administrative expenses THEX (137,802) (116,481)
Other gains or losses Hth Uy 71 3¢ B5 48 (16,361) (21,268)
Finance costs =g 7 (10,228) (6,896)
Profit before tax R 72 B e ) 8 367,732 277,244
Taxation | 10 (68,513) (565,119)
Profit for the year FEHF 299,219 222,125
Other comprehensive expense FEHEMEZEMAX
for the year
Item that may be reclassified HEJGEEN 7 F
subsequently to profit or loss: EmzEE
Exchange differences arising on MBBINERESE
translation of foreign operations ZERERE (4,033) (48,366)
Total comprehensive income RRBHEBE ANEMS
for the year and attributable FEXEW AL
to owners of the Company 295,186 173,759
Earnings per share - basic BEREN-EX 12 HK4.4 cents#fll  HK3.28 cents
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AT 31 DECEMBER 2023
2023412 831H

ISR U

2023 2022
NOTES HKS$'000 HK$'000
B 5 F#ET FET
Non-current assets ERBHEE
Property, plant and equipment ME BB REE 13 1,478,611 1,516,410
Right-of-use assets FTRESE 14 276,269 274,495
Rental deposits MEEE 16 91,636 78,758
Deposits paid for acquisition of WEE = ~ AR R E
property, plant and equipment ZzBefEE 16 2,700 6,264
1,849,216 1,875,927
Current assets MENE E
Inventories F8 15 3,060,276 2,703,418
Right to returned goods asset BEREE 21 1,086 1,286
Receivables, deposits and FEUARIE ~ &R
prepayments R IE 16 177,341 136,024
Amounts due from related & Wit B} 2 2 B R 1B
companies 22 797 782
Time deposits with original FEISREHA =AM L
maturity over three months B E BA 17 ™ 17 160,898 198,200
Cash and cash equivalents HERIREEEY 17 458,750 466,192
3,859,148 3,505,902
Current liabilities mENafE
Payables and accrued charges FETFRIE I St & A 18 269,059 159,505
Lease liabilities HEaE 19 177,501 200,838
Contract liabilities =R =K 20 12,996 13,380
Refund liabilities BREE 21 1,712 2,053
Amounts due to related P& 11 BR 2 A B RIE
companies 22 4,513 6,954
Taxation payable FET R IE 65,313 50,742
531,094 433,472
Net current assets mENEERE 3,328,054 3,072,430
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
&r o B K I e 3R

AT 31 DECEMBER 2023

2023412 831H

2023 2022
NOTES HKS'000 HK$'000
Bt 5% F#ExT THE T
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EIERIBEE 23 3,456 4,036
Lease liabilities HEAaE 19 127,126 99,262
130,582 103,298
Net assets BEESRE 5,046,688 4,845,059
Capital and reserves BErxki#E
Share capital Rg 7 24 3,484,152 3,484,152
Reserves =it 25 1,562,536 1,360,907
Total equity 480 4 25 5,046,688 4,845,059

The consolidated financial statements on pages 70 to 151 H70E F151H 2 45 M 5 R &K B 12024 FE3
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of HBIOHEEZEEZSH AERTEETIE > WH T
Directors on 19 March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by: EEAAEE"

CINDY YEUNG WONG CHI FAI
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GreMEm BB R
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B ZE2023F12B31HLEEFE
Share Merger Other Capital  Translation Retained
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
g Rl Hiti Gt e BXfE ERfH REBEN e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER TER
(note 25(a))  (note 25(b))  (note 25(c))
(Msk25(a)  (MsE25(b)  (Mi#E25(c)
At 1 January 2022 #2022 F1B1H 3,484,152 (373,008) (26,195) 2,529 18,473 1,614,834 4,720,790
Profit for the year FERA - - - - - 222,125 222,125
Exchange differences arising HEBNEREE L
on translation of foreign BERERE
operations - - - - (48,366) - (48,366)
Total comprehensive (expense) FEZAMEI)WALE
income for the year - - - - (48,366) 222,125 173,759
Final dividend paid for 2021 021FEBRNZKBRE
(note 11) (FyzE11) - - - - - (23,728) (23,728)
Interim dividend paid for 2022 002FE[MZRBRE
(note 11) (H35E11) - - - - - (25,762) (25,762)
At 31 December 2022 2022612 531H 3,484,162 (373,003) (26,195) 2,529 (29,893) 1,787,469 4,845,059
At 1 January 2023 120231510 3,484,152 (373,003) (26,195) 2,529 (29,893) 1,787,469 4,845,059
Profit for the year FE&R - - - - - 299,219 299,219
Exchange differences arising HEBNEBRELEL
on translation of foreign ERER
operations - - - - (4,033) - (4,033)
Total comprehensive (expense) FE2EMES) WALE
income for the year - - - - (4,033) 299,219 295,186
Final dividend paid for 2022 002FEMZRBRE
(note 11) (H35E11) - - - - - (42,033) (42,033)
Interim dividend paid for 2023 03FBMZHBRE
(note 11) (P E11) - - - - - (51,524) (51,524)
At 31 December 2023 12023128310 3,484,152 (373,003) (26,195) 2,529 (383,926) 1,993,131 5,046,688
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2 ACTH A s B
SAEHESMER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

B E2023F12A31IBIEFE
2023 2022
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FA&T F#E T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEXRH
Profit before tax B A% Al s 367,732 277,244
Adjustments for: B
Reversal of write-down for inventories 7 & # o MR (1,092) (1,839)
Depreciation of property, ME~ KBIRREITE
plant and equipment 140,684 127,105
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEINE 255,340 226,731
Impairment loss recognised in respect FADE S B R
of property, plant and equipment ZRBERBE - 129
Impairment loss recognised in respect w1 FB R B EE B BT
of right-of-use assets ZBEEE - 500
Loss on disposals/write-off of property, HE Y E - Has
plant and equipment S8 k= 2,588 2,074
Gain arising from termination/ MRAIE MEBRFTES
modification of leases Z W (931) (162)
Interest income EIFSY N (14,595) (7,984)
Finance costs L= 10,228 6,896
Operating cash flows before movements  kst&EE & S FHAI
in working capital IREFPERE 759,954 630,694
Increase in inventories FEZ2®m (361,670) (27,673)
Decrease in right to returned RE#SE E R D
goods asset 200 267
(Increase) decrease in receivables, FEWFRIE ~ & RFEN
deposits and prepayments FRIE (I h0) b (41,317) 24,566
Increase in amounts due from FE UK B8 A Bl FRIB I 0
related companies (15) (29)
Increase in payables and accrued charges F&{J =t 18 Kz FE 51 & F3 18 10 104,500 12,249
Decrease in contract liabilities aHBERD (384) (5,273)
Decrease in refund liabilities BREasERD (341) (151)
(Decrease) increase in amounts due to FEN R E AT RIE
related companies CGRLZD) 180 (2,441) 4,832
Net cash generated from operations KEMMRZIRE R 458,486 639,482
Income taxes paid ENFER (54,892) (33,907)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING BETHFRSZHEFEHE
ACTIVITIES 403,594 605,575
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
el Ei R R

2023 2022
NOTES HKS$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEE
Refunds of rental deposits BREHERSE 3,043 29,518
Payment of rental deposits HEREBAX (19,072) (20,581)
Payment of deposits paid for WEEME -~ B RHRE
acquisition of property, plant and Z2ENfEEMR
equipment (2,700) (5,760)
Proceeds from disposal of HEMZE KB R&KE
property, plant and equipment ZFrigmIE - 3
Purchase of property, plant and BEYE HBEKXE
equipment (99,201) (31,472)
Withdrawal of time deposits with ENRIBABEA=EA
original maturity over three months M ENEBRER 336,317 -
Placement of time deposits with ERREIABEA=EA
original maturity over three months UENTERER (297,207) (198,200)
Interest received BUF B 12,336 6,054
NET CASH USED IN KREEBFIAZ
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REPE (66,484) (220,438)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
Dividends paid BEfNEE 32 (93,557) (49,490)
Interest paid [=ENENS] 32 (10,228) (6,896)
Bank borrowings raised BEER/ZEBITEE 32 - 300,000
Repayments of bank borrowings EEIRTHEER 32 - (465,452)
Repayments of lease liabilities EEHEaE 32 (240,597) (244,428)
NET CASH USED IN RMEEESFRAZ
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REFEE (344,382) (466,266)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RERFAEEED
CASH EQUIVALENTS R (7,272) (81,129)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FNZHRER
AT THE BEGINNING REEEY
OF THE YEAR 466,192 556,344
Effect of foreign exchange SNEEREEF Y B
rate changes (170) (9,023)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZ72EERRSE
AT THE END OF THE YEAR EEM 458,750 466,192
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A o 55 AR B AR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

1.

P.76

GENERAL INFORMATION

Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited (the "Company”) is a
public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its immediate holding
company is Emperor Watch & Jewellery Group Holdings
Limited ("Emperor W&J Holdings”) which is incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"). The directors of the
Company (the “Directors”) consider that its ultimate
holding company is Albert Yeung Watch & Jewellery
Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI.
The address of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company is 25/F, Emperor Group Centre,
288 Hennessey Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in
note 34.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in

Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) AND CHANGES IN
OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA")
for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
Group's annual period beginning on 1 January 2023 for
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

HKFRS 17 (including the October  Insurance Contracts
2020 and February 2022
Amendments to HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to

Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform -
Pillar Two Model Rules

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Policies

Except as described below, the application of the new
and other amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has
had no material impact on the Group's financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar o W 75 R 3R B AR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

2.

P.78

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) AND CHANGES IN
OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year -
continued

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 8
Definition of Accounting Estimates

The Group has applied the amendments for the first
time in the current year. The amendments define
accounting estimates as “monetary amounts in financial
statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”,
An accounting policy may require items in financial
statements to be measured in a way that involves
measurement uncertainty. In such a case, an entity
develops an accounting estimate to achieve the objective
set out by the accounting policy. The amendments
to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting estimates, and changes in accounting policies
and the correction of errors.

The application of the amendments in the current year
had no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS
12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time
in the current year. The amendments narrow the scope of
the recognition exemption of deferred tax liabilities and
deferred tax assets in paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12
Income Taxes so that it no longer applies to transactions
that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) AND CHANGES IN
OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS
12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction - continued

In accordance with the transition provision:

(i) the Group has applied the new accounting policy
retrospectively to leasing transactions and provisions
for restoration that occurred on or after 1 January
2022;

(i) the Group also, as at 1 January 2022, recognised a
deferred tax asset (to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary difference can be utilised) and
a deferred tax liability for all deductible and taxable
temporary difference associated with lease liabilities
and right-of-use-assets and restoration and the
corresponding amounts recognised as part of the cost
of the related asset.

The application of the amendments has had no material
impact on the Group's financial position and performance,
except that the Group has disclosed the related deferred
tax assets of HK$16,681,000 and deferred tax liabilities of
HK$16,681,000 on a gross basis as at 1 January 2022 in
note 23 but it has no impact on the retained earnings at
the earliest period presented.

A7 o W s R B AR

TRBETERMBHR
r ! %ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ'ﬁ)&

ot OIFF Gt

& i 38
I8 Z

EREEGAER T2 ZIE5TE
EMBE—XEELEZEERAR
FHZEERBNZE %

RIFBERE :

() REBEH2022F1A1BH ZBELEN
HEXGREERFEENERMG
TR S

(i) p2022F 1818 ZEB I AFFEA
HEBEREREEEREERER
BYA] F 0 K FE ER AR B = RE B T
EIEMBEE (LB IREERF/ATTN
M B ERRB BRI m A A R KB
JEIRTE B MR 0 U0 A8 MR & RE P AT A
HEABEER TR —ED o

BRZFEITHEAERNMBRRKE
RUEEERTE  BEAEEENMKE23
FRUUAB R B AR IR BB 10 2022 F1 B 1H B RY
R IE R TE & EE 16,681,000 7% 7T K IR IE R 15
&1516,681,0008 TR > BHERF 27
HENBFRmTERE -

EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED # 2% EHMR AT P79

2023 ANNUAL REPORT £ R




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

2,

P.80

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) AND CHANGES IN
OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS
1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of
Accounting Policies

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time
in the current year. HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements is amended to replace all instances of the term
“significant accounting policies” with "material accounting
policy information”. Accounting policy information
is material if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity's financial statements,
it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that
the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of the
related transactions, other events or conditions, even if
the amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting
policy information relating to material transactions, other
events or conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses
to disclose immaterial accounting policy information, such
information must not obscure material accounting policy
information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements (the "Practice Statement”) is also amended to
illustrate how an entity applies the “four-step materiality
process” to accounting policy disclosures and to judge
whether information about an accounting policy is material
to its financial statements. Guidance and examples are
added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments has had no material
impact on the Group's financial positions and performance
but has affected the disclosure of the Group's accounting
policies set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) AND CHANGES IN
OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year -
continued

Change in accounting policy as a result of
application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) - Long
Service Payment (“LSP”) offsetting mechanism in
Hong Kong

As disclosed in note 30, the Group has several
subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong which are obliged
to pay LSP to employees under certain circumstances.
Meanwhile, the Group makes mandatory and voluntary
MPF contributions to the trustee who administers the
assets held in a trust solely for the retirement benefits
of each individual employee. Offsetting of LSP against
an employee's accrued retirement benefits derived
from employers' MPF contributions was allowed under
the Employment Ordinance (Cap.57). In June 2022, the
Government of the HKSAR gazetted the Employment
and Retirement Schemes Legislation (Offsetting
Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the
“Amendment Ordinance”) which abolishes the use of the
accrued benefits derived from employers' mandatory
MPF contributions to offset severance payment and LSP
(the "Abolition”). The Abolition will officially take effect
on 1 May 2025 (the “Transition Date”). In addition, under
the Amendment Ordinance, the last month's salary
immediately preceding the Transition Date (instead of the
date of termination of employment) is used to calculate
the portion of LSP in respect of the employment period
before the Transition Date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

2.

P.82

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) AND CHANGES IN
OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year -
continued

Change in accounting policy as a result of
application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) - Long
Service Payment (“LSP”) offsetting mechanism in
Hong Kong - continued

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting
mechanism in Hong Kong" which provides guidance for
the accounting for the offsetting mechanism and the
impact arising from abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting
mechanism in Hong Kong. In light of this, the Group has
implemented the guidance published by the HKICPA in
connection with the LSP obligation retrospectively so as
to provide more reliable and more relevant information
about the effects of the offsetting mechanism and the
Abolition.

The Group considered the accrued benefits arising from
employer MPF contributions that have been vested with
the employee and which could be used to offset the
employee's LSP benefits as a deemed contribution by
the employee towards the LSP. Historically, the Group
has been applying the practical expedient in paragraph
93(b) of HKAS 19 to account for the deemed employee
contributions as a reduction of the service cost in the
period in which the related service is rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

2,

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) AND CHANGES IN
OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Change in accounting policy as a result of
application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) - Long
Service Payment (“LSP”) offsetting mechanism in
Hong Kong - continued

Based on the HKICPA's guidance, as a result of the
Abolition, mandatory contributions are no longer
considered “linked solely to the employee's service in that
period" since the mandatory employer MPF contributions
after the Transition Date can still be used to offset the
pre-transition LSP obligation. Therefore, it would not
be appropriate to view the mandatory contributions as
“independent of the number of years of service” and the
practical expedient in paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19 is no
longer applicable. Instead, these deemed contributions
should be attributed to periods of service in the same
manner as the gross LSP benefit applying paragraph 93(a)
of HKAS 19,

The Group continued to apply the practical expedient
under paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19 for voluntary
contributions. The voluntary contributions are accounted
for a reduction of the service cost in the period in which
the related service is rendered. Since the Group has made
sufficient MPF voluntary contributions to offset the current
service cost historically and cumulatively, the change in
accounting policy as a result of application of the HKICPA
guidance on the accounting implications of the abolition
of the MPF - LSP offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong
has had no material impact on the Company's financial
positions and performance for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

2,

P.84

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) AND CHANGES IN
OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

The Group has not early applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective:

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture'

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)?

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants?

Supplier Finance Arrangements?

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 7
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

The Directors anticipate that the application of all

amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on

the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A o G5 AR B AR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

B E2023F12B31HIEEE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. RUEFAMTERRNKERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS EgiHREH
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION
The consolidated financial statements have been oV BERKRIIBEEAEISSMA

prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The Directors have, at the time of approving the
consolidated financial statements, a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future. Thus they continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing the consolidated
financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

TEMZEEYBFRSENRFER -
MERRGEEMBREMS ) HERH
ENAEERERETEEREF
HBRTE > M ARERRERELXR -
W5 REMBRERETEES B M
BEXEZRAERLRBESZFLEHHRA (L
TR REBRAGHRE Z B
PR EE ©

Rt EGEMBREN EECE
EEAAEEEENERRITRE
RABBEEE o Al RERERE
SMBRABRERAFACES
HEE o

=g J=F-% 1

HREUBRREEELAATRELF
EHZEREMENBARZMBR
KeWBUTER MAATER
R

s THEBREHRITERET;

- FA2AREWRTEHHIE
BREREBTRER; K

s ARENBTHEEBIMEEZX
SAEIES

EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED #2Eix%EHMR A5 P85

2023 ANNUAL REPORT £ R




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A o 55 AR B AR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. IRE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2g
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

FEMBHERRNKERE
THREN -2

ik 3 =

Basis of consolidation - continued

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies in line with the Group's
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an

identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A o G5 AR B AR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

HE2023F12H831HLEEE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. RN AMBHRRNKERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS EEHEER-~#

AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

Leases - continued
Definition of a lease - continued

For contract which the supplier has substitution rights
to substitute alternative assets, and it has the practical
ability to do so and would be benefited economically
from the exercise of its right to substitute the asset
throughout the period of use, the Group does not
have the rights to use the identified asset and does
not account them as a lease under HKFRS 16.

The Group as a lessee
Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

e the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date; and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in restoring the site on which it is located or
restoring the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A o 55 AR B AR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. RN AMBHRRNKERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS EEHEER-~#
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued
Leases - continued HE-— =&

The Group as a lessee - continued
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments ("HKFRS 9") and
initially measured at fair value.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at
that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

Variable lease payment that are based on certain
percentage of sales are recognised as expense in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers
the payment occurs.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

el R e (R
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HE2023F12H831HLEEE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. (UG AMBHRRNKIERSE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BEHMEER &

AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group's operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve.

Employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans, the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and
state-managed retirement benefit schemes, are
recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. IRE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2g
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

FEMBHERRNKERE
THREN -2

ik 3 =

Employee benefits - continued
Retirement benefit costs - continued

The Group accounts for the employer's MPF
contributions expected to be offset as a deemed
employee contribution towards the LSP obligation.
The Group applies the practical expedient in HKAS
19.93(b) to account for employer's MPF voluntary
contributions as the deemed employee contributions
as a reduction of the service cost in the period in
which the related service is rendered. For mandatory
contributions, the Group applies HKAS 19.93(a) and
attributes the contributions to period of services for
the purpose of calculation of the negative service
costs. The estimated amount of future benefit is
determined after deducting the negative service cost
arising from the accrued benefits derived from the
Group's MPF contributions that have been vested
with employees.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries and annual
leave) after deducting any amount already paid.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A o G5 AR B AR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

HE2023F12H831HLEEE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. RN AMBHRRNKERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS EEHEER-~#

AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of current
and deferred income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before
tax' because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit and at the time of the transaction
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A o 55 AR B AR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. RMIEEH
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ci g
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

Taxation - continued

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group recognises
the right-of use assets and the related lease liabilities,
the Group first determines whether the tax deductions
are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities and ultimate
costs incurred for provisions for restoration, the Group
applies HKAS 12 requirements to the lease liabilities,
and the provisions for restoration and the related
assets separately. The Group recognises a deferred
tax asset related to lease liabilities and the provisions
for restoration to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary difference can be utilised
and a deferred tax liability for all taxable temporary
differences arising from right-of-use assets.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
they relate to income taxes levied to the same taxable
entity by the same taxation authority.

HE-—#&

HERANEENEENEE BT
MEEERBERBAHRNRABARY
ERAZMEUNERABAGEREER
T 1T 3 R BB 0 1T 2 IR R (e 3R 0E)
FHELE o

BRERBEERERREEZSHERRR
HBEE HEAERNERBBE
REFHZAAAUREHEEESE
ERBEZKREE-

Mt EXEEEIEREEERME
MESEEENEEXRZNELERIA
ME ' *EEBLETRRBARSR
BRERAREEEREERRE -

mAEEEEMANGRRE RRE
BEEENERAANEAERZM
S AEBEDIMEERRNRIK
EREREHEERBEBIE
AIE12ERIRTE - ZEBMERAESE
EELENMERRREFEESR
Mre SN ERMTERNE
RMEFSR BBEAEEERK
MERFBEEBNELERES ERIE
ERIBERE -

EAETHEEEARRABNEBEE
HERPINEBEE BEMERF —
MERE-ERRERRBUWFAER
ERE BEEREBEEERERRRF
RSN o

P.92 EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED H E#ZHBEHR A H

2023 ANNUAL REPORT £ R




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A o G5 AR B AR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. RN AMBHRRNKERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS EEHEER-~#

AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

Taxation - continued

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost,
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both leasehold
land and building elements where the consideration
cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease
building element and undivided interest in the
underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of assets less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in the profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A o 55 AR B AR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

HE2023F12H831HLEEE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. RN AMBHRRNKERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS EEHEER-~#

AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

P.94

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indicator that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indicator exists, the recoverable amount of the
relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the smallest group
of cash generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the group of
cash-generating units to which the corporate asset
belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of
the relevant group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value-in-use. In assessing value-
in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset or a
cash-generating unit for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A o G5 AR B AR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. RN AMBHRRNKERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS EEHEER-~#

AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

BERFEZFEY

Cash and cash equivalents

RERBEFTBYRESHHNRR

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the

consolidated statement of financial position include: xEH > B

(a) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and (@ R HEEBEFERENEHE
demand deposits, and S E’z

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term b) BEEEBY HOERBPGE

IR 'JEHEU%_TI)%YE%’)\D
EREBHASENHRBEREHE
BEEFHRERBIANSRILER

(generally with original maturity of three months
or less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in B - REFEBYHFIEWERH
value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose REAE > MIEFARKENHM
of meeting short-term cash commitments rather BHH o

than for investment or other purposes.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of inventories is determined
on a weighted average basis for gold and specific
identification basis for watches and other jewellery
items depending on the nature of the inventory. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs necessary
to make the sale. Cost necessary to make the sale
include incremental costs directly attributable to the
sale and non-incremental costs which the Group must
incur to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A o 55 AR B AR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

HE2023F12H831HLEEE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. RN AMBHRRNKERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS EEHEER-~#
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued
Provisions #E
Restoration provisions W 1E £ &

Provisions for the costs to restore leased assets to
their original condition, as required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, are recognised at the date of
inception of the lease at the directors’ best estimate
of the expenditure that would be required to restore
the assets, estimates are regularly reviewed and
adjusted as appropriate for new circumstances.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15
Revenue from contracts with Customers ("HKFRS
15"). Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income and
interest expense over the relevant period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A o G5 AR B AR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

HE2023F12H831HLEEE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. RN AMBHRRNKERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS EEHEER-~#

AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

Financial instruments - continued
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost with
interest income recognised using the effective interest
method:

e the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Impairment of financial assets

Under the expected credit loss approach, the Group
assesses the expected credit losses associated
with its financial assets based on historical data
and forward looking information. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk. The
impairment model under HKFRS 9 applies to
financial assets measured at amortised cost. The
Group applies the simplified approach to recognise
lifetime expected credit losses for trade receivables.
As regards other receivables, rental deposits, time
deposits with original maturity over three months
and bank balances, the Group considers that they
have low credit risk and hence recognises 12-month
expected credit losses ("ECL") for such items.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A o 55 AR B AR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

HE2023F12H831HLEEE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. RN AMBHRRNKERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS EgstESEH -~

AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

Financial instruments - continued
Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade payables, other
payables and amounts due to related companies) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liability when, and
only when, the Group's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

4,

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the Directors are
required to make estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

4,

P.100

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

In estimating the amount of write-down for inventories
- jewelleries held for resale, it is the Group's policy to
review the net realisable value of inventories periodically
based on the condition of the items and the market
condition. The management of the Group reviews regularly
the suitability of write-down policy and estimates the
amount of write-down for inventories based primarily
current market conditions, historical and current sales
information, pricing policy and strategies, costs necessary
to sell inventories, inventory realisation plan, as well as
the ageing and conditions of inventories to identify slow-
moving items. In addition, the management also appoints
an independent professional gemmologist to perform
valuation on certain jewellery items as reference for write-
down consideration. The Group carries out an inventory
review at the end of the reporting period and makes
write-down. When the subsequent estimated amount of
write-down for inventories is less than the original cost,
a material write-down may arise. As at 31 December
2023, the carrying amount of inventories for jewelleries
held for resale is HK$2,496,990,000 (net of write-down
for inventories of HK$56,177,000) (31 December 2022;
HK$2,057,410,000 (net of write-down for inventories of
HK$57,584,000)).

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue represents sales of products to retail customers
and commission income from services provided.

For sales of products to retail customers, revenue is
recognised when control of the goods has transferred,
being at the point the customer purchases the goods at
the retail shops. Payment of the transaction price is due
immediately at the point the customer purchases the
goods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A o G5 AR B AR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

HE2023F12H831HLEEE
5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5, MARDEER -—#
- continued

For commission income, revenue is recognised when
the Group is entitled in exchange for arranging for the
specified goods provided by the other party to the
customers at the retail shop (i.e. the Group is an agent).

All revenue are recognised at a point in time.

The Group operates a customer loyalty programme for
sales through the retail shops, where retail customers are
awarded points for purchases made which entitle them
to redeem award points as sales discounts in the future.
The transaction price is allocated to the product and the
award points on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
The customer loyalty award points expire every year and
customers can redeem the award points any time before
the specified expiration date. Revenue from the award
points is recognised when the award points are redeemed
or expired. Contract liabilities are recognised until the
award points are redeemed or expired.

Revenue is recognised for sales which are considered
highly probable and where a significant reversal of the
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur. A refund
liability is recognised for sales in which revenue has
not yet been recognised. Information about the refund
liabilities is provided in note 21.

Information reported to the chief operating decision
maker ("“CODM"), the Executive Director of the Group,
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance focuses on the locations of the
operations. This is also the basis upon which the Group is
arranged and organised. The Group's operating segments
under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments are operations
located in Hong Kong, Macau, The People's Republic
of China excluding Hong Kong and Macau (“PRC") and
other regions in Asia Pacific (representing Singapore
and Malaysia). The revenue generated by each of the
operating segments is mainly derived from sales of watch
and jewellery. No operating segments identified by the
CODM have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable
segments of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A o 55 AR B AR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

HE2023F12H831HLEEE
5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARDEHER =
- continued

FIEERBERBEZWRANR—FARNTH °
REBMBREERFIGRNMAESF > 2
REZFAETEONXZERIL KK

All the sales of products and commission income are
completed within one year. As permitted under HKFRS
15, the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied

P.102

contracts is not disclosed.

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and
results by reportable and operating segment:

UTHEAEBRAKREREZAZR MK

SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B E2023F12A31HLLEE
Other
regions in
Hong Kong Macau PRC  Asia Pacific Elimination Consolidated
E& o0 HE TAHMME it 25 ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TER TERT FTER TERT TER
Revenue WA

External sales SRME 2,495,985 295,075 1,372,918 644,358 - 4,808,336
Inter-segment sales* DY E 128,968 22,097 - - (151,065) -
Commission income [ZEA N 14,026 861 - - - 14,887
2,638,979 318,033 1,372,918 644,358 (151,065) 4,823,223

* Inter-segment salesare  * S HEHE

charged at cost B AZH

Segment profit o8 232,908 48,680 210,017 117,797 - 609,402
Other income Heflg A 14,802
Corporate expenses rERY (229,883)
Other gains or losses Hithm o 518 (16,361)
Finance costs BEMK (10,228)
Profit before tax B %3 A s F 367,732
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 5 T R I

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5, MARDEER -—#

- continued
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE2022F12831HIEFEE
Other
regions in
Hong Kong Macau PRC Asia Pacific Elimination  Consolidated
&5 B hE DAEMME i€z Ra
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FTET FTERT TERT FTER TERT
Revenue WA
External sales SRME 1,644,971 216,137 1,186,332 628,146 - 3,675,586
Inter-segment sales* D EFE I E* 39,513 36,175 - - (75,688) -
Commission income BEUBA 7,542 1,133 - - - 8,675
1,692,026 253,445 1,186,332 628,146 (75,688) 3,684,261
* Inter-segment salesare  * HHEHE
charged at cost Bl AZH
Segment profit DEEF 166,964 33,988 181,202 121,988 - 504,142
Other income Heflg A 9,828
Corporate expenses rERY (208,562)
Other gains or losses Him 5B 18 (21,268)
Finance costs B YA (6,896)
Profit before tax B %3 A s F 277,244

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment profit represents the profit
earned from each segment without allocation of other
income, corporate expenses including depreciation
charged on the self-owned flagship shop, other gains or
losses and finance costs. This is the measure reported
to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance.

No assets and liabilities are included in the measures of
the Group's segment reporting that are regularly reviewed
by the CODM. Accordingly, no segment assets and
liabilities are presented.

Rl 28 A E ) B0 2 & 5T BUER B Y 5E 3P
HAEBEHRER - 2 WEF 5
AOEEMBA EXRX(BEERE
EEBEENITEER Hthllm B8
URBEMAR)ZBEE DB ERIEA o
ERARE2EBRREETER  LUF
ERIEAFEDBRRZFAERE -

TEEERREEHMBERZAERDH
BRESFERULEFABEERER - ALt >
TEIBDLEEKREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A7 o W s R B AR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

B E2023F12H31HLEEE
5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
- continued

Amounts included in the measure of segment result:

5. WABRDEER -2

STADEEBSEZ

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H F2023F12831HLLEFE
Other
regions in
Hong Kong Macau PRC  AsiaPacific  Unallocated Consolidated
&% B hE EAHEMBE *RE KA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THERT THERT TERT THERT THERT
(Note c)
(HfsEc)
Depreciation of property, ME - BBRZBINE
plant and equipment 33,560 1,776 6,804 3,385 95,159 140,684
Depreciation of right-of-use  FHEEEENE
assets (Note a) GED) 195,202 7,548 32,356 8,612 11,622 255,340
Expenses relating torented BT EYEERM
premises (Note b) % (M 3Eb) 8,417 63 104,501 15,394 821 129,196
For the year ended 31 December 2022 B E2022F12831HIEFEE
Other
regions in
Hong Kong Macau PRC Asia Pacific Unallocated ~ Consolidated
N B FE DAEMME ANk )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET THER FTET THET FTET THET
(Note ¢)
(Hf5tc)
Depreciation of property, ME - BBRZBINE
plant and equipment 16,604 2,609 7,212 2,938 97,742 127,105
Depreciation of right-of-use  FREEEFTE
assets (Note a) (i zta) 173,405 9,143 26,870 7,258 10,065 226,731
Expenses relatingtorented SR EVXBREZ
premises (Note b) EEA(ED) 2,101 18 90,980 15,376 671 109,146
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 5 T R I

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

B E2023F12A31IBIEFE
5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5, WARZEBEH -2
- continued

Notes: B 5% -

(a) The management aligns with the industry norm which includes () BEEEBRETXER#G  RERAEEENIT
the depreciation of right-of-use assets in the measure of segment ESADHERSTEERSFATEEEEN
result but does not include the interest on lease liabilities. FME o

(b) Expenses relating to rented premises include expenses relating to (by HEEYVERHE - HAZIBFATEREN
variable lease payments and rental expenses for contracts which REMzZAIREFTHZEEYXAEE
the landlords have the substantive right to substitute the rented EMERENGNZHEERE -
premises.

(c) Unallocated represents amount used for office and depreciation ) RPEERBRBAEREREEEEEDN
charged on the self-owned flagship shop. TEERZ T4 °

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue from FEERBEFEEMARB ZWA D

its major products and services: Wwr:

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Sales of watch oH i i 3,465,488 3,008,968
Sales of jewellery HERE 1,342,848 666,618
Commission income - Watch 1 & WL A — % % 14,887 8,675
4,823,223 3,684,261
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A o 55 AR B AR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

5.

P.106

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

- continued

Information about the Group's non-current assets,
excluding rental deposits, presented based on the

geographical location of the assets are detailed below:

5. WABRDEER -2

ERREEMEMBNUEERZEAEER
FRBEEMERERELERNBEE
BRINZERSFBEHINNT:

As at 31 December 2023 #42023%F12H31H
Other
regions in
Hong Kong Macau PRC Asia Pacific Consolidated
E# i mE SZAHMHME e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FER FER FER FER
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,643,522 8,797 79,603 25,658 1,757,580
As at 31 December 2022 72022512 831H
Other
regions in
Hong Kong Macau PRC Asia Pacific Consolidated
58 B hE DAHEMHME =a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
Non-current assets FERBEE 1,686,712 8,430 77,117 24,910 1,797,169

No revenue from a single customer contributed 10% or

more of the Group's total revenue for both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A o G5 AR B AR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

6. OTHER INCOME Hthig A
2023 2022
HKS$'000 HK$'000
F#Ex FHET
Interest income from bank deposits RITERFEWA 12,336 6,054
Interest income from rental deposits & &< F] B Ut A 2,259 1,930
Government grants I 48 BY - 548
Others Hi 207 1,296
14,802 9,828

7. FINANCE COSTS =0 %S
2023 2022
HKS$'000 HK$'000
F#Ex FHET
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEFE - 688
Interest on lease liabilities HEEEMNE 10,228 6,208
10,228 6,896
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A o 55 AR B AR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8. PR Al i F
2023 2022
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Profit before tax has been arrived at PR AT &AM Bk (Bt A)
after charging (crediting): THIER:
Auditors' remuneration % 8B B &
- Current year —REE 3,695 3,763
- Overprovision in prior years - BEFEBEER (240) (62)
Cost of inventories included in cost HERARNZEEG M A
of sales (included reversal of (B 7 & & Ol
write-down for inventories of 1,092,000 7T (20224 :
HK$1,092,000 (2022: reversal of 75 # B OB
write-down for inventories of 1,839,000 7T))
HK$1,839,000)) 3,361,066 2,499,637
Depreciation of property, plant M BBRREITE
and equipment
- retail shops — &5 137,606 121,444
- offices ) YNES 3,078 5,661
140,684 127,105
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREBEINE
- retail shops — T E L 243,718 216,676
- offices ) YNES 11,622 10,055
255,340 226,731
Staff costs, including Directors' BIMA  BEFEESEMNE
remuneration (note 9(a)) (B4 5%9(a) )
- salaries and other benefits —FEKRHEMEFNEB
costs (Note) (B 5%) 313,020 237,459
- retirement benefits scheme —RIKTE A 5T B R
contributions 26,976 25,451
339,996 262,910
Included in other gains or losses: T E AU 2 o A5 18
Impairment loss recognised in respect Ft4) 2 - 128 % 5% & FE R
of property, plant and equipment ZBEEIR - 129
Impairment loss recognised in respect Fi 1 3 1 & E FE 2R
of right-of-use assets Z BEEE - 500
Loss on disposals/write-off of HE FEHYE - HEK
property, plant and equipment REZEE 2,588 2,074
Gain arising from termination/ HE&ILE BN ESE
modification of leases Z W@ (931) (162)
Net exchange losses PE &0 B 48 % 4B 14,704 18,727
16,361 21,268
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

o 63 5 9 R

8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX - continued 8. MRIgAIEH =
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recognised MizE: MEZE2022F12831HLEEE » A&
government grants amounted to HK$9,217,000 in respect of AT B RSB BEEMNMALER
COVID-19-related subsidies, of which HK$7,383,000 relates IF %8 B 9,217,000 7T » H #17,383,0007%
to Employment Support Scheme provided by the Hong Kong TCEE BT R HAY TR 5185 B
government and HK$1,286,000 related to Jobs Support Scheme %21,286,0007 7T £ 37 10 3 B AT 32 14 89 5L
provided by the Singapore government. These amounts have (XTFHEAER  ZEREERZFE
been offset against staff cost of the year. B TR A o
9. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES' 9. EEREEM=E
EMOLUMENTS
Details of the emoluments paid and payable to the B E2023F F2022F12B31HIEEE
Directors for the years ended 31 December 2023 and ZENKRENESZMEFENT:
2022 are as follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2023 # F2023F12831HLLEFE
Performance Retirement
Salaries related benefits
and incentive scheme Others
Fees allowance payment  contributions (note) Total
BIkEH Hit
e HEREE RARBEZ HEIS (M) Eh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#R F#Ew THERT TR T#ERT F#Ew
Executive Directors BTES
Ms. Cindy Yeung BEBLT 250 1,920 - 60 2,160 4,390
Mr. Ng Koon Keung, Ricky REREE
(Chief Executive Officer) (TBER)
(resigned on 31 January 2024) (20241 B31RET) 250 2,953 - 60 3,263
Mr. Wong Chi Fai BEERE 250 - - 250
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa PEELL 250 - - 250
Independent Non-executive BUkRiTES
Directors
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene RERLT 220 - - 220
Mr, Liu Hing Hung BERLE 220 - - 220
Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne RERUT 220 - - 220
1,660 4,873 - 120 2,160 8,813
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
&r o W5 R 3R B T

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

B E2023F12B31HIEEE

9. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES' 9.
EMOLUMENTS - continued

EEREEME-— 2

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B E2022F12A31HIEFE
Performance Retirement
Salaries related benefits
and incentive scheme Others
Fees allowance payment  contributions (note) Total
RIEEH Httt
e HEREN RREBRX BEL:EA GES b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TERT THER THER THER TERT
Executive Directors BETER
Ms. Cindy Yeung BEByt 250 0475 . 5 2020 4,800
Mr. Ng Koon Keung, Ricky REBREE
(Chief Executive Officer) (rmaEs) 250 2,544 384 60 - 3,238
Mr. Wong Chi Fai ETRLE 250 - - - - 250
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa TEELL 250 - - - - 250
Independent Non-executive BUERiTES
Directors
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene BRERLL 220 - - - - 220
Mr, Liu Hing Hung BERLE 220 - - - - 220
Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne BEBY+ 220 - - - - 220
1,660 5019 384 115 2,020 9,198
Note: For the year ended 31 December 2023, a sum of MisE: #ZE2023F12831BILEEE > 715

HK$2,160,000 (2022: HK$2,020,000) was paid to a ERTETRMFANEBNRGTRHE
company controlled by Ms. Cindy Yeung for the provision ARBZERNBRBRAEES 2R
of her services relating to design and consulting services B —EF1E2,160,000% 75 (2022
rendered to the Group. £F 12,020,000 7T) °

NEBZHEURSHMEES > WL
(2022F | ML) BEE ° B F 2 5 bl
Y LM EE9(a) o BR T =1L (2022
Fi=f)EEBZHMUWT:

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, two (2022: two) were Director whose
emoluments are included in note 9(a) above. The
emoluments of the remaining three (2022: three)
individuals were as follows:

2023 2022

HKS'000 HK$'000

F#ExT FET

Salaries and allowance i RoERL 4,082 3,689
Performance related incentive

payment FRIFEENR X 865 551

Retirement benefits scheme
contributions RIABAEEHR 180 185
5,127 4,425
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
&r o 5 R 3R B T
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E20283F12B31HIEFE
9. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES'
EMOLUMENTS - continued

9. EEREEME -~

Their emoluments were within the following bands: WEZFHFMEEND T
Number of employees
BEAH
2023 2022
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 TE
1,500,000 7T 1 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T =
2,000,00078 7© 2 1
Notes: B 5F

(i)

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

V)

The fees paid or payable to the Executive Directors and
Independent Non-executive Directors shown above were
for their services in connection with their services as the

Directors.

The salaries and allowance, performance related incentive
payment and retirement benefits scheme contributions paid
or payable to the Executive Directors shown above were for
their services in connection with the management of the

affairs of the Company and the Group.

The performance related incentive payment is a discretionary
bonus determined based on the financial performance of the

Group and the commission earned by selling the products.

No Directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments in
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022.

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December
2022, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors of the Group or the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office.

EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED #E 2 8% EHR AT

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

LHENIECTRTEERBILIEN
TESFZHENHERSMETESM
REZRBER -

ERENHENRATES2HERE
B RIEBRBA X RRKEF 58 #
RRRERERARDRAERSE
BMmREHZRBEER -

EREMBENREEEHBER
REEERFHERASEE 2L
TEAL -

BE2023F12831HK2022F12831H
HEE BREEREARNERELE
B & o

B E2023F 1283318 %2022412831H
LFE AEREBERERAERE
EYRNURSHNESZTEMAME
ERMAXEEBRRNMAEEREZN
BB HEABEREAEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

%

A7 o W s R B AR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

B E2023F12A31IBIEFE
10. TAXATION 10. 1R 18
2023 2022
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FE T
The tax charge for the year comprises: ERRIEZ HEIE
Current year: KEE:
Hong Kong 58 25,800 6,200
Macau B P 7,828 3,797
PRC F 23,210 24,987
Singapore O 3R 20,676 20,108
77,514 55,092
Overprovision in prior years: BEFEBEER:
Hong Kong 55 (665) (3,556)
Macau A PY (3,066) (2,575)
PRC F (4,600) -
(8,331) (6,131)
Deferred taxation (note 23) i S 75 18 (Bt 5£23) (670) 6,158
68,513 55,119

P.112

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will
be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be
taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying
for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to
be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The Directors considered the amount involved upon
implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
as insignificant to the consolidated financial statements.
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

The Macau Complementary Income Tax is calculated at
12% of the estimated assessable profits for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
"EIT Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the tax rate of the Company's subsidiaries in the PRC is
25% for both years.
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> M #8 182,000,000 Jt 2 & F) & %
16.5% I KM o T 155 F 1350 M Ak 6l &
Bz EBBRE ZEA A #E1%16.5% 2 &
—REHEIR -
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MEFE2EBHNNERELEFEERR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A o G5 AR B AR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

10. TAXATION - continued 10. 1R I8 —#

Singapore Income Tax is calculated at 17% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years.

Malaysia Income Tax is calculated at 24% of the estimated
assessable profits for both years. No provision for
Malaysia Income Tax has been made as the Company's
subsidiary did not have any assessable profit arising from
Malaysia for both years.

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 23.

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit before
tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

w18 F B Z #I03R PR 1S A 19 3% & 5 B ER
Mg F Z17% st & o

o 1B fE 2 5 2R PE 52 P 19 R 19 42 fh 51T 1B
R Z24%5tHE - RMEEER > H#
RAEAABNBAB L ENFERAEDEE
EAERREF > FUIE I ER FRAE:
FRSIFH M -

BEIEIR B Z SF B FE23 ©

AEERBRGGEm REME2EEA
WRRZERRAa A BRI T

other comprehensive income as follows:

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET &It
Profit before tax Bk 72 A i 367,732 277,244
Tax charge at Hong Kong Profits Tax ~ ##16.5% 2 & B #1581
rate of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) MEBKR KRB
(20224 1 16.5%) 60,676 45,745
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AEHMELZ Z2RBEE
for tax purpose 14,296 11,764
Tax effect of income not taxable for BMEAFRMBMAZRBEZE
tax purpose (2,532) (1,267)
Effect of different tax rates of i@ AR REMBEEAEE
subsidiaries operating in KREZARAMERZZE
other jurisdictions 3,082 4,597
Tax effect of tax losses not BARBRNIEBEEIEZ
recognised MBELE 2,640 999
Utilisation of tax losses previously BRLARAER ZRIBE IR
not recognised (1,318) (493)
Over provision in respect of BEFEBEERE
prior years (8,331) (6,131)
Others Hh - (95)
Taxation for the year FEMRIA 68,513 55,119

FTFRAZEEBMNEREEAERERE
BPFEREZEERZEMBRE - REMET
FREEEZMRBEDNZBEBAI EZREZ
BRAMEEE -

The Hong Kong Profits Tax rate is used as this is the
domestic tax rate in the jurisdiction where the operation of
the Group is substantially based. Taxation arising in other
jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the
relevant jurisdictions.
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or B B 3R B R
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

11. DIVIDENDS 1.2
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Dividends recognised as BIAAEFEEDRZKER:
distribution during the year:
2022 Final: HK0.62 cent 2022 K HA : &R 0.627E A
(2022: 2021 final dividend: (20224 1 20215 K H
HKO0.35 cent) per share i& B 1 0.35%8 1) 42,033 23,728
2023 Interim: HK0.76 cent 2023F H Hf 1 § IZ0.76 &1L
(2022: interim dividend: (20224 : HEARR B ¢
HKO0.38 cent) per share 0.3878 1lI) 51,524 25,762
93,557 49,490

The Board of Directors proposed the payment of a
final dividend of HKO0.56 cent (2022: HKO0.62 cent) per
share in an aggregate amount of HK$37,965,000 (2022:
HK$42,033,000) for the year ended 31 December 2023
which is subject to approval by the shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the following data:

12,

HZE2023F12B31HIEFEE  EFTE &
TS R HBRR E &R 0.56 81l (20224 : 0.62
BAl) > 48 F8 4 A37,965,0007 7T (2022
£ 142,083,000/ 70) > EAEKRKATKE
REEREBFEASGEHEBRHIES o

BREN-EF

ARBEBEABESREABNTHRE
NI EIEEE

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Profit for the year attributable to MtBEEREARRFZ

owners of the Company for the RABIHEB ANFEMW

purpose of basic earnings per share FEimr) 299,219 222,125
2023 2022

Number of ordinary shares for the MmetEEBREARERFZ
purpose of basic earnings per share ZEKREE 6,779,458,129 6,779,458,129

No diluted earnings per share in both years was presented
as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Gr B 15 AR MY AR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12H31HLEEE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. % - B REHE

Leasehold Furniture,
land and Leasehold fixtures and Motor
building improvements equipment vehicles Total
HELHE HENE &K RER
L ES HEIR EL RE @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
TER TER THET FET TET
CcosT 2
At 1 January 2022 72022%181H 1,800,000 331,359 128,684 1,353 2,261,396
Additions RE - 20,725 10,747 - 31,472
Disposals/write-off HE /i - (80,313) (4,191) - (84,504)
Exchange realignment EREZE - (3,052) (1,740) (19) (4.811)
At 31 December 2022 2022128311 1,800,000 268,719 133,500 1,334 2,203,553
Additions RE - 86,308 19,157 - 105,465
Disposals/write-off HE/HH - (13,576) (5,489) - (19,085)
Exchange realignment ERHEE - 82 (111) (5) (34)
At 31 December 2023 12023128318 1,800,000 341,533 147,057 1,329 2,289,919
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION B ERFAE
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2022 20221810 281,289 269,470 93,762 1,152 645,673
Provided for the year FREE 92,081 20,520 14,307 177 127,105
Impairment loss recognised REGRIZAERE
in profit or loss - 129 - - 129
Eliminated on disposals/write-off HE /SHIERI - (78,505) (3922) - (82,427)
Exchange realignment ERHEE - (2,063) (1,255) (19) (3,337)
At 31 December 2022 720224128318 373370 209,551 102912 1,310 687,143
Provided for the year FREE 92,081 35,905 12,683 15 140,684
Eliminated on disposals/write-off HE /8 R 8 - (11,911) (4,566) - (16,477)
Exchange realignment ERAE - 79 (116) (5) (42)
At 31 December 2023 2023128311 465,451 233,624 110,913 1,320 811,308
CARRYING VALUES IRE{E
At 31 December 2023 2023128311 1,334,549 107,909 36,144 9 1,478,611
At 31 December 2022 720224128318 1,426,630 59,168 30,588 24 1,616,410
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THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
2023F12B31HIEEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

- continued

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had pledged the
leasehold land and building with carrying amount of
HK$1,334,549,000 (2022: HK$1,426,630,000) to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group.

The items of property, plant and equipment above, after
taking into account the residual value, are depreciated on
a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and building Over the lease terms

Leasehold improvements 16.7%-33.3%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment  9%-33.3%

Motor vehicles 18%-20%

Leasehold land and building is located in Hong Kong.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, due to the
impact of COVID-19 pandemic, the number of visitor
arrivals dampened which led to certain shops in Hong
Kong and Macau not performing as expected, the
management of the Group concluded there was an
indicator for impairment and conducted impairment
assessment on recoverable amounts of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets of relevant shops.
The Group estimates the recoverable amount of these
shops, each represents an individual CGU, to which the
asset belongs when it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually.

The recoverable amount of CGUs has been determined
based on a value in use calculation.

Based on the result of the assessment, certain shops
with impairment indicators have been impaired in full as
the remaining lease term of these shops are to end in
less than one year from the end of the reporting period
and hence would not generate a net cash inflow in the
future, accordingly. Impairment loss HK$129,000 and
HK$500,000 has been recognised against the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets respectively in profit or loss during the year ended
31 December 2022,
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13.ME - BB RBE-—&

R2023F12831H » AEEREE L
K 18 F BR ™ 181,334,549,0007% 7T (2022
F 1 1,426,630,00078 75) BRI » LUER
BEIAREEZIRITRE °

MEthFrEER  EHYE S BB
REEEBUEGEER TIERITE !

HE Lt RIEF AR

HEYMEN=ZTE 16.7%—33.3%

B HERRRE 9%—33.3%

_E 18%—20%

HEL M REFUREE -

B E2022F12B31HIEFE > BRI SR
FRBENEE HEAERL > ERE
BRBMETEHNRREROER > &
EEEEEBFLAR > B RERIER
[EHZME- KRB RRE 2T WE £
UMEEAEEERT RBERBETRE
Lo M EmIAB B At U0l %8 > A
AREBGHZSESEHEEMBZES R
TELBUZAIKEIEEE

REEEBEMNZAWREBIZEDREER
BEFAEEEE -

REFEER ARBRESFRNET
EEMN R AR ERPBRES —F
NE®R ZEEHEETZERAE S AL
REAREBEBZIELERERAFE WEE
2022F12B31HIEFE » ¥ ~ BB RFE
EURGCRAEEEDNNERERER
8 8 B #538129,00078 7T 52500,0008 7T °©




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Gr B 15 AR MY AR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12H31HLEEE

14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 14.FHEEBE

Leased properties

HEME
HK$'000
FHET
As at 31 December 2023 §£2023%F12A31H
Carrying amount IRMEE 276,269
As at 31 December 2022 §%2022%12A31H
Carrying amount FREE 274,495
For the year ended 31 December 2023 H F2023F12831HILLFEE
Depreciation charge mEER 255,340
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H F2022F12831HILFE
Depreciation charge mEEHR 226,731
Impairment losses recognised (note 13) B R 2 A K 8 (M 5E13) 500

Addition to right-of-use assets resulting from new lease
entered or renewed amounted to HK$258,215,000 (2022:
HK$307,866,000).

For both years, the Group leases retail shops and office
for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for
fixed term of 1 to 5 years, but may have extension and
termination options as described below. Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. In determining
the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a
contract and determines the period for which the contract
is enforceable.

The Group has extension options for certain leases in
Hong Kong. These are used to maximise operational
flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the
Group's operations. The extension options held are
exercisable only by the Group.

The Group assesses at lease commencement date
whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the extension
options. As at 31 December 2023, the potential exposures
to these future lease payments not included in lease
liabilities for extension options was HK$25,724,000 (2022:
HK$16,946,000) because the Group is not reasonably
certain to exercise these options.

Ml UREEHHEAMERERAEE E
258,215,000 7T (20224F : 307,866,000
7T) °

RmEFE > AEBEBHESEE &)
ANRENDFEE - HEGYFITLEE#HR
m—ELF - BHEBE NIRRT ZIER
& LEEZE#Z HERRNDHREERE
RETHE &S S KEE T B R KIF
e REEEBP KRGS BHHEBELN
FHE  FEERBGONEERERTE
B 9R F £ MBI o

AEEREAEAETHEZERERE
oz EEERARNNEEAERLE
FFRZEEMKEREEMERE KR - EX
EEATTHEZEREERE -

AEBRBERGHRTFHRETENS
EBERTEITEIEREREE - R2023F128
SIH AAKXEBRECERETHEZ
TEERE T AMALEREEEZEHE M
EaBzAKRKMBENRZBERARA
25,724,0007 7T (20224 : 16,946,000/ 7T) ©
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

14,

15.

P.118

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS - continued

Leases of retail shops are either with only fixed lease
payments or contain variable lease payment that are
based on certain percentage sales and minimum annual
lease payment that are fixed over the lease term. The
payment terms are common in retail shops in the PRC
where the Group operates. The overall financial effect of
using variable payment terms is that higher rental costs
are incurred by shops with higher sales.

Variable lease payments during the year ended
31 December 2023 was HK$75,706,000 (2022:
HK$50,331,000). In addition, expenses relating to rented
premises include expenses relating to variable lease
payments and rental expenses for contracts which the
landlords have the substantive right to substitute the rented
premises were HK$53,490,000 (2022: HK$58,815,000).
Total cash outflow for leases during the year ended 31
December 2023 amounted to HK$326,531,000 (2022:
HK$300,967,000).

4. FHESE-— &

EEHzEEEAEERENRIE

EEENRENDERBHEEZE
?Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ&%ﬁﬁfﬁ =S R o
TRERNAEAERETTEEENTERS
HASE ERVEXNERNERY
SR ERSHEEREELEZNEE
B 7S o

B E2023F 12831 EEN A EHEE R
I8 #75,706,0007 7t (20224 : 50,331,000
Brr) o s HEEYMERB R (8
EREOESEAENRN ARSI RETY
ZHEYEXEEEENERENENZ
2 £ B9 &) A583,490,0005% 7T (20224 :
58,815,000 JT) ° & £2023F12831H Lk
FEHE 2R M H 485 326,531,000
3 7T (20224 © 300,967,000 7T) ©

INVENTORIES 15. 8
2023 2022
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET T AT
Raw materials Rk 27,201 23,932
Goods held for resale BFEEER S 3,033,075 2,679,486
3,060,276 2,703,418
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Gr B 15 AR MY AR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12H31HLEEE

16. RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 16.FEYREHhIE - HE RFE(HHIE

PREPAYMENTS
2023 2022
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables from contracts RKEFEFENZESEWRRIE
with customers 73,963 52,393
Less: Allowance for credit losses W EEEEEG (526) (538)
73,437 51,855
Other receivables, deposits and HMEWRIE s e RFEN
prepayments 18 93,319 80,452
Rental deposits MeEs 91,636 78,758
PRC Value-added Tax (“VAT") REPT W g ER (B ER )
recoverable 13,285 9,981
271,677 221,046
Analysed as: aRiir=
Current ik 177,341 136,024
Non-current - rental deposits FERB—MHEEE 91,636 78,758
Non-current - deposits paid for JERE — U BB ~ TR
acquisition of property, RERHEZEMNEE
plant and equipment 2,700 6,264
271,677 221,046

As at 1 January 2022, trade receivable from contracts with
customers amounted to HK$54,589,000.

Retail sales are normally settled in cash or by credit cards
with the settlement from the corresponding banks or
other financial institutions within seven days. The credit
term of receivables from retail sales in department stores
are normally ranged between 15 to 45 days.

Included in other receivables, deposits and prepayments
as at 31 December 2023 were advance payments to
suppliers of HK$30,413,000 (2022: HK$7,442,000)
and rebate receivables of HK$27,265,000 (2022:
HK$30,493,000). The remaining items are individually
insignificant.

EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED #E 2 8% EHR AT

R2022F1B1H  REFEREGNZEZ RN
18 7554,589,00078 7t °©

TEHE-—RURSTNERRTREMERE
WEXNZERFRREtARERN RBER
BTEHEZRURE-—RERZEERSD
15ZE45H °

1220235128318 » m{HEREERR30,4130007%8 7T
(20224 : 7,442,0007% JT) X & Y [8] $027,265,000
7 7t (20224 1 30,493,000 1) B 5t A HAth &
WHIE - ZERBNREBE HGNEEHSA
BIBEAEKRESHE o
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B E2023F12B31HIEEE

16. RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND

P.120

PREPAYMENTS - continued

The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables
before impairment presented based on the invoice date at
the end of the reporting period, which approximated the
respective revenue recognition dates.

16. FEUAFRIE - M R FA(TNIE— =

U 7 BB A & 7 P& W RRIA 1Y BE 3R HA 2R
RERAH (BZERWAERERMER
2 ZRE DT o

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TET

Within 30 days 30HA 73,036 50,995
31-60 days 31E260H 332 519
61-90 days 61E90H 13 189
Over 90 days 8 i890H 582 690
73,963 52,393

Included in the trade receivables balance were receivables
from department stores with aggregate carrying amount
of HK$574,000 (2022: HK$511,000) which are past due at
the reporting date for which the Group has not provided
for impairment loss.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables are set out in note 27.

EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED E 28 % EHR AT
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574,000 7T (20224 : 511,000 70) 2 FE K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Gr B 15 AR MY AR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12H31HLEEE

17. TIME DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL MATURITY 17. BEXHBAA=EBU LN TEHE

OVER THREE MONTHS AND CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

As at 31 December 2023, time deposits of HK$160,898,000
(2022: HK$198,200,000) with original maturity over three
months that carried interest at prevailing interest rate
which ranged from 3.00% to 4.50% (2022: 2.50% to
3.00%) per annum. Cash and cash equivalents carried
interest at market rates which ranged from 0.01% to 4.50%
(2022: 0.01% to 3.50%) per annum.

Time deposits with original maturity over three months
and cash and cash equivalents that are not denominated
in the functional currencies of the respective group
entities are as follows:

AERREREEEEY

F22023F12831H > REIBHA =@ B U
B9 E i 77 F0160,898,00078 7T (20224 :
198,200,000 7T) » ¥ IR 17 & F) E3.00%
F4,50% (20224 : 2.50% £3.00%) 5t &
RERREEEYRETEENNT001%E
4.50% (20224 : 0.01% £3.50%) 5t & °

WHFNBERBRZWEEBINEZR
AR =ERU LN ERERMKRTEE
RIFEEZEYWMT:

2023 2022

HKS$'000 HK$'000

F#ET FHET

HK$ BT 271 242

Macau Pataca ("MOP") PS5t (DR TT) 32,629 36,400

United States dollars ("USD") EZ7x(E57T)) 199 699

Renminbi (“RMB") AREETAE®]) 83,920 215,450

18. PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES 18. Bt IERESER

2023 2022

HKS$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

Trade payables B S’ RIE 122,063 51,362

Other payables and accrued charges — E {th FE {4 18 & FE =t & FF 145,008 107,115
Singapore Goods and Services NG R REEMRIE

Tax payables 790 1,018

PRC VAT payables R e (T IS E AR 1,198 10

269,059 159,505

Included in other payables and accrued charges as at
31 December 2023 were accrued bonus and incentive
of HK$23,601,000 (2022: HK$17,511,000), accrued
commission of HK$9,497,000 (2022: HK$8,521,000) and
accrued for renovation cost of HK$37,779,000 (2022:
HK$2,997,000).

EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED #E 2 8% EHR AT

FR2023F12531H » FEEHEAL K £%5:23,601,000
B (20224 1 17,511,000 7T) ~ FEsHAE
9,497,00078 7t (20224 : 8,521,000/ 75) &
FE 5t % & A 237,779,000 7t (20224 :
2,997,000 7t) B 5t A Efh FE (T I8 K &
FFEA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A o 55 AR B AR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

18. PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES 18. B IEREANER -2
- continued
The ageing analysis of trade payables presented based on B RERNREBERERPARLEZBHE
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period are as FlZEREe DU T
follows:
2023 2022
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within 30 days 30H™A 113,080 44,215
31-60 days 31E60H 3,293 2,393
61-90 days 61Z290H 3,439 4,452
Over 90 days #8iEo0H 2,251 302
122,063 51,362
The Group normally receives credit terms granted by AEBR—REBREARTZEEHAI0
creditors of 30 to 60 days. F£60H -
Trade payables that are not denominated in the functional THENSERERZEEEHAEZE
currencies of the respective group entities are as follows: SEMZTIBWOT:
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
MOP B PITT 2 2,183
usD ETT 13,819 -
Euro ("EUR") BT (TER7Ty) 86 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A o G5 AR B AR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

B E2023F12B31HLIEFE
19. LEASE LIABILITIES 19. G &1/
2023 2022
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET TAET
Lease liabilities payable: FENHEAaRE:
Within one year —FR 177,501 200,838
Within a period of more than —F M EEFREBBMRF
one year but not more than
two years 77,486 76,708
Within a period of more than MEUELEBRBBERE
two years but not more than
five years 49,640 22,554
304,627 300,100
Less: Amount due for settlement BIBARBERLBER —F
within one year shown NEEGBEZEH
under current liabilities (177,501) (200,838)
Amount due for settlement after FIAFEREBEBERLBR —F
one year shown under BEEEEZEH
non-current liabilities 127,126 99,262
The incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities FEENHEHEERENEEEEFN XS
was 1.14% to 6.41% (2022: 1.14% to 4.62%) per annum. 1.14% E6.41% (20225 1 1.14% £ 4.62%)
20. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 20589867
2023 2022
Notes HKS$'000 HK$'000
B 5% FET FHET
Advances from customers BERBM (a) 5,837 10,280
Customer loyalty programmes B & £ st 2 (b) 7,159 3,100
12,996 13,380
Contract liabilities are expected to be settled within the EHNEBEEINLTER —REEHEBR
Group's normal operating cycle and classified as current GERDBANHERA-
liabilities.
As at 1 January 2022, contract liabilities amounted to 20221818 » & 4 & 18 418,653,000
HK$18,653,000. BT °
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Xz & 23
&R G B 5 AR B AT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

20. CONTRACT LIABILITIES - continued 20.

Notes:

(@) During the year ended 31 December 2023, revenue recognised
in the current year relating to contract liabilities at the beginning
of the year for advance from customers and customer loyalty
programmes were HK$10,280,000 and HK$3,100,000 (2022:
HK$16,191,000 and HK$2,462,000) respectively.

(b) Sales of goods that result in award credits for customers, under
the Group's customer loyalty programmes, are accounted for
as multiple element revenue transactions. The fair value of the
consideration received or receivable is allocated between the
goods supplied and the award credits granted. The consideration
allocated to the award credits is measured by reference to the
fair value of the awards for which they could be redeemed. As
at 31 December 2023, the consideration of HK$7,159,000 (2022:
HK$3,100,000) was allocated to the award credits.

The customer loyalty points granted during the year will expire at

the end of June in the following year.

21. RIGHT TO RETURNED GOODS ASSET AND
REFUND LIABILITIES

adafE--

(a) B E2023F12B3BLFE BFEPER
%EH%’IE&@E HHENENEEER
B 7 F 0 58 U &= 9 Bl 710,280,000 7 7T
&3,100,000%7c (2022& 116,191,000 7t &
2,462,000 7T) °

(b) MEMBBELFRBAEE BT LW st8E
BREASHEEDNARAZ TRRAR
5> E2HYBERIERREZ 2 ABERFT
HEMRAMBTREZBETOR 2
RERE2AREBH2EZSATRRZE
EZNAEESE o 12028F12831H > 9
o & 8% 8 2 A8 A7,159,0003 7T (20224 :
3,100,00038 7g) °

REAFERHNBEZEEHGE ZEDFR
RENBERM °

1LBEEREERERGR

2023 2022

HKS$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Right to returned goods asset BREREE 1,086 1,286
Refund liabilities arising from right BERFEEZEREBE

of return 1,712 2,053

The refund liabilities relate to customers' right to return
products. At the point of sale, a refund liability and a right
to returned goods asset and a corresponding adjustments
to revenue and cost of sales are recognised for those
products expected to be returned. The Group uses its
accumulated historical experience to estimate the number
of returns using the expected value method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

22,

23.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) RELATED
COMPANIES

The amounts due from related companies mainly represent
prepayment of operating expenses.

The amounts due to related companies mainly represent
the service charge payable to related companies. These
amounts due to related companies are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

22.

s R AR Y AR
FE Uk () BEE QB R IA
ERBMEAIRBEIEACENL 2B
SEE
EAMEAARBEEIEABNRERS
ZREE REEAMEAARELE

B -REREERESR-

The related companies represent companies controlled by EANBAESTHAMAGERE—NUES
a director or private trusts of which another director is one AREBERTmAZ )ERIZ AT -
of the eligible beneficiaries.
DEFERRED TAXATION 23. B EMIE
The following are the deferred tax assets (liabilities) AEEBRIZELERBEBEEEB KA
recognised by the Group and the movements thereon RAFERBEFEZEHNT:
during the current and prior years:
Accelerated
tax Right-of-use Lease
depreciation assets liabilities Total
MERBFHE FERAEEE HERE o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
At 1 January 2022 202041818 2,115 (16,681) 16,681 2,115
(Charge) credit to profit or RERNB DR A
loss for the year (6,158) (932) 932 (6,158)
Exchange realignment fEREE 7 - - 7
At 31 December 2022 12022128318 (4,036) (17,613) 17,613 (4,036)
Credit (charge) to profit or RERBEFA R
loss for the year 670 2,335 (2,335) 670
Exchange realignment R (90) - - (90)
At 31 December 2023 120235128318 (3,456) (15,278) 15,278 (3,456)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
“F B WS 2R M EE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HE2023F12H831HLEEE
23.DEFERRED TAXATION - continued 23. IR EMIE — =
TR GAMBERIBRERMS  BF
BERESERAED TG - UTA
R R T S MR LR IELE R D

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax assets
and liabilities have been offset. The following is the
analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting

purpose:
2023 2022
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Deferred tax liabilities EIERIBEE (3,456) (4,036)

RERPEAEED  AEE#HEB I HIEH
R m M 2 R B) F R TE K5 48 942,801,000
7 70(20224F © 40,730,00058 7T)° B K & &
AR EEUTES AR ZEREE
MR IE o MY 8 A B P & & 5 K &
RREEREBOERRAELEBEERRZ
42,801,000 71 (2022 4F : 40,730,000 75) Z
EERETR EFAEEBRZREBEE
5,999,000 7T (20224 1 1,271,0007 75)°

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$42,801,000 (2022:
HK$40,730,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax has been recognised in respect of such
losses due to unpredictability of future profit streams.
Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses incurred
by subsidiaries of HK$42,801,000 (2022: HK$40,730,000)
that will expire in the coming years (please see the table
below). Tax losses of HK$5,999,000 (2022: HK$1,271,000)
have been expired during the year.

FIRAMFRERREZN ZAGERNBER

The unused tax losses available for offset against future

P.126

profits are analysed as follows: DMWT:

2023 2022
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FERT & T

Will expire on: B TEHEAE® -
31 December 2023 2023%12H31H - 5,999
31 December 2024 2024F12831H - 2,629
31 December 2025 20255 12H31H 4,748 8,310
31 December 2026 2026 12831H 20,176 5,371
31 December 2027 2027128318 4,073 5,868
31 December 2028 20284F12H31H 5,275 5,275
31 December 2029 2029F12H31H 2,311 2,311
31 December 2030 2030&E12H31H 1,188 -
37,771 35,763

Unrecognised tax losses that may be  BJ#E[B HR 45 8 >

carried forward indefinitely FERMIEEEE 5,030 4,967
42,881 40,730
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

24. SHARE CAPITAL

Number of ordinary shares

24. g 7

A7 o W s R B AR

Share capital

LBk ®HE A 2

2023 2022 2023 2022

HKS$'000 HK$'000

FT#Ex FTET

Issued and fully paid BEITRARE
At beginning of year and RENRER
at end of year 6,779,458,129  6,779,458,129 3,484,152 3,484,152
25.RESERVES 25.f# &

(a) Merger reserve arose from the group reorganisation (@ EHBEEEALABREELIARAR
scheme (the "Group Reorganisation”) undertaken by 7 12008 4F 7£ B 22 P 1 M 4% f <

the Company to rationalise the structure of the Group
in preparation for the listing of the Company's shares
on the Stock Exchange in 2008.

Other reserve represented the aggregate amount of:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

the difference between the nominal value of share
capital and the amount due to Emperor W&J
Holdings capitalised for issue of 344 ordinary shares
of US$1 each in a subsidiary of HK$343,997,000
prior to the Group Reorganisation;

the capital contribution of HK$6,000 by Emperor
W&J Holdings in Emperor Watch and Jewellery
Company Limited (subsequently renamed as
Prime Sharp Limited, a then fellow subsidiary
of the Company) ("EWJCL") prior to the Group
Reorganisation;

promissory notes in aggregate of HK$373,006,000
issued in exchange for shares in the subsidiaries
as a part of Group Reorganisation;

the excess of the consideration paid for
acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary
from a non-controlling shareholder over the
carrying amount of non-controlling interest of
HK$927,000 during the year ended 31 December
2010;

EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED # 2 %kBEHR AT

(b)

EEREZEEEEE ((EEEME)
PREZE °

Hithf#EBmIE TR B ZEE:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

REBEHEN RAEERRE
TREEHRRFERMBBER
6 (B1T344R B AR B REE
1IZETzEBERRM ZBEHNER
343,997,000 7T ;

HEBRGKEERTEESEZMHA
FHEEEFRKEESRLAR(H
% % % Prime Sharp Limited > &
HAaARazZzR8RMERB)
(TEWICL)) Z HE6,0007% 7T ;

EREEEHEZED > SN
BRBZRMMETZARTREE
& 373,006,000 7T ;

[ — % 3 £ 5% B B UK B — R B
BABREIIER ZEMNKERB
JEVE G HE 2R 7Y B = 2010512 B 31
HIEFE Z REE927,0008 7T ;
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B E2023F12B31HIEEE

25.

26.

P.128

RESERVES - continued

(b) Other reserve represented the aggregate amount of:
- continued

(v) the shortfall of the consideration paid for
acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary
from a non-controlling interest of HK$4,063,000
during the year ended 31 December 2010;

(vi) the reversal of reserve of HK$295,000 arising

from the deregistration of a non-wholly owned

subsidiary during the year ended 31 December

2011; and

(vii) the reversal of HK$28,000 and HK$5,000 arising
from the deregistration of a wholly owned
subsidiary during the year ended 31 December
2015 and 31 December 2014, respectively.

Capital reserve represented the excess of the value
of net assets acquired over purchase consideration
paid to EWJCL by Emperor Watch & Jewellery (HK)
Company Limited in 1987,

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure the entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and
cash equivalents, lease liabilities and equity attributable
to the owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital and reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure periodically.
As part of this review, the Group considers the cost of
capital and risks associated with the capital, and will
balance its overall capital structure through new share
issues and share buy-backs as well as raising of new bank
borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A o G5 AR B AR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

B E2023F12A31IBIEFE
27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 27. &f T A

2023 2022

HKS$'000 HK$'000

FET FHE T

Financial assets THEE
At amortised cost % # 85 pL A 811,986 825,473
Financial liabilities THEE

At amortised cost ¥ 35 AR A 145,126 80,691
The Group's financial instruments include trade FEBEMIAGOEEZ R
receivables, other receivables, rental deposits, time BE-HMEKRE -HEEE R
deposits with original maturity over three months, AHEA=EANLNEBER
cash and cash equivalents, trade payables, other RERREEEY  BZEMRIE -
payables, amounts due to related companies and HMEMNRIE - BNEEASINRIE
lease liabilities. Details of these financial instruments UEREEEBE ZETMITAFS
are disclosed in their respective notes. The risks RENTIRE -HBZEETMITAEM
associated with these financial instruments include ErzRBREOETSRREF ERR &
market risk (interest rate risk and foreign currency ShERRR) - EERRBRABESR
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on g o TXEIBBEZFRE 2 BR o
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The AEREEEEERERZEAR

management of the Group manages and monitors DARE 1R e BF B X ER B 38 & 15 T ©

these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 75 ¥ 3% BT aE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

o2 N
A

P.130

Market risk

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to floating-rate bank balances (see
note 17 for details). The Group cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation
of interest rates on bank balances. The Group
manages its interest rate exposures by assessing
the potential impact arising from any interest
rate movements based on interest rate level and
outlook. The management will review the floating
rates and ensure they are within reasonable
range. The Directors consider that the exposure
of cash flow interest rate risk arising from
floating-rate time deposits and bank balances is
insignificant.

Foreign currency risk

The Group's activities are exposed primarily to
the financial risks of changes in foreign currency
exchange rates.

The Group has certain sales and purchases
transactions, time deposits with maturity over
three months and bank balances denominated in
MOP, USD, RMB, EUR, Singapore Dollars (“SGD")
and Malaysian Ringgit (“MYR") which are the
currencies other than the functional currencies
of respective group entities. The Group manages
its foreign currency risk by closely monitoring
the movements of the foreign currency rates. The
Directors conduct periodical review of foreign
currency exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign exchange exposure should the
need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 5 T R I

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Market risk - continued

(ii) Foreign currency risk - continued

The carrying amounts of the Group's monetary
assets and liabilities, including inter-group
balances at the end of the reporting period that

27. M TH &

i 45 Jal B —
(ii) G Rl B — 4

REHRBR > AEELERELRS
WEEBUINEEINENE
REERBR(EEEEBERR)

are denominated in currencies other than the REENT:
functional currency of the relevant entities are as
follows:
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
Assets BE
Third parties F=H
HK$ BT 271 242
MOP BP9 TT 32,629 40,169
UsSD ETT 199 699
RMB AR 83,920 215,450
SGD FNE T 21 17,071
MYR ERADSEH 14 17,762
Inter-group balances £ EF R FE
MYR ERAEERESE 5,830 6,092
Liabilities =R
Third parties EF=F
MOP BP9 TT 2 2,202
USsD E7T 13,819 -
EUR BX 7T 86 -
Inter-group balances £ F R4S ER
HK$ BT 858,395 824,070
SGD AN T 112,573 16,016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A o 55 AR B AR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 27. &ft TR -#

h 45 Jal B — &
(i) SMEE R B — 42

Market risk - continued

(i) Foreign currency risk - continued

P.132

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below details the Group's
sensitivity to a 9% (2022: 6%) increase in the
functional currencies of the relevant group
entities, relative to respective foreign currencies.
The sensitivity analysis of the Group also
includes foreign currency exposure on inter-
group balances. 9% (2022: 6%) is the sensitivity
rate used in the management's assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign
currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
only foreign currencies denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the end of
the reporting period for a 9% (2022: 6%) change
in the foreign currency rates. If the functional
currencies of the relevant group entities
strengthen/weaken 9% against respective foreign
currencies:

Post-tax profit for the year would have decreased/
increased by HK$7,376,000 and increased/
decreased by HK$72,530,000 (2022: Post-
tax profit for the year would have decreased/
increased by HK$14,904,000 and increased/
decreased by HK$41,783,000) as a result of
change in foreign currency rates of third parties’
assets and liabilities and inter-group balances
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Gr B 15 AR MY AR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12H31HLEEE

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 27. &f TR -#

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group's
counterparties default on their contractual obligations
resulting in financial losses to the Group. The Group's
credit risk exposures are primarily attributable to trade
receivables, other receivables, rental deposits, time
deposits with original maturity over three months and
bank balances. The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks
associated with its financial assets.

The Group performed impairment assessment for
financial assets under ECL model. Information about
the Group's credit risk management, maximum
credit risk exposures and the related impairment
assessment, if applicable, are summarised as below:

Trade receivables

Before accepting any new customer, the Group
uses an internal credit scoring system to assess the
potential customer's credit quality and defines credit
limits by customer. Limits and scoring attributed to
customers are reviewed annually. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In this
regard, the Directors consider that the Group's credit
risk is significantly reduced.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations is mainly in the PRC and Hong
Kong, which accounted for 66% (2022: 73%) and
20% (2022: 19%) of the total trade receivables as at
31 December 2023, respectively. In order to minimise
the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits and credit approvals.

15 B /@ i & it (5 5F 1

FEERRERAEENFHERKSE
GHNETMEREAERELEMBS
BEER AEFEENEEER
TEREEZEWEHRE Y HMME K
mESHERE - RIHBAR=E
BUENERERRIBITEER &
ERTEFEENEFARIEME
RAERERAREESMEERH
WEERE -

FAEBREREAEEFEEAE S
MEEETHES G BRAEE
WEERBREE BERENRAKEE
R\ R AR B R E ET S BV E K (WNE )
Bt

B 5 B RIE

RESHERA > XEEERRNI
EEFDZMALEEZERNEES
BX UIRERAEFEEE - TR
WEBEERIDEGFET RIS -
HMEZEREFERIL UEFRKR
RETHERARREH it &
ERR FAEENEFERRERESE

B o

rHessAEBEERR X
EERRPEEEE > K20234F12
B3IHD A EZEWRRIBEELE 2
66% (20224 : 73%) 5220% (20224 :
19%) c BRAUEREBEEERR > &
EEEEEBEKREKEAEEERGE
HEKREE#MZ -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A o 55 AR B AR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment
- continued

Trade receivables - continued

In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on trade balances.
Except for items that are subject to individual
evaluation, the remaining trade receivables are
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
by reference to the external credit ratings for industry/
Group's internal credit ratings/past-due amounts/
repayment frequency after due dates. Details of the
quantitative disclosures are set out below in this note.

Other receivables, rental deposits

The Directors have taken into account internal credit
rating based on the historical default experience and
credit quality and various external sources of actual
and forecast economic information, as appropriate,
in estimating the probability of default of each of
the other financial assets occurring within their
respective loss assessment time horizon. They are
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
by reference to the external credit ratings for industry/
Group's internal credit ratings/past-due amounts/
repayment frequency after due dates. For the purpose
of impairment assessment, the ECL of these financial
assets is measured under 12-month ECL. No ECL
allowance has been recognised as the amount is not
considered to be material.

Time deposits with original maturity over three
months and bank balances

The credit risk on time deposits with original maturity
over three months and bank balances are limited
because the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

27. &ft TR -#
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 27. &f TR -#

15 B B R (8 5T 1 — &

Credit risk and impairment assessment
- continued

FHBEA=EA U LN EH
N IR1T 4L R — 42

Time deposits with original maturity over three
months and bank balances - continued T?

BEABBASEEFRNIRITH
RBEEHNEREERRIN A&

ErEEFNEMBEREREERR -

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited with several banks with high
credit ratings, the Group does not have any other
significant concentration of credit risk.

AEBRIPEERBRFARB T E
Bl #E BE

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

Internal credit

rating Description Trade receivables Other financial assets

IS &R A EA B AW RIE HittgMEE

Low risk The counterparty is reputable and has a low risk of Lifetime ECL - not 12-month ECL
default and does not have any past-due amounts  credit-impaired

1% B F REENREHFHZENRAREE cHBEREERR REABHEERE
BiEEMABRERE -BiEERE

Watch list Debtor is reputable but with past-due amounts Lifetime ECL - not 12-month ECL
and frequently repays in full after due dates credit-impaired

ER4E ABEALERIBHATHEEARESRD LHEHREERSR RELEHEERR
BHA -EiEERE

Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit Lifetime ECL - not Lifetime ECL - not
risk since initial recognition through information  credit-impaired credit-impaired
developed internally or external resources

75t REABTRZENIIIBER FERR cHRBEERR LHBEREERRE
Bt HE DU RBEE -EEEHE -BESHE

Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired

B# ERBETREELREERE cHBEREERR LHRREERR

-BEERE BEERE

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is Amount is written off Amount is written off
in severe financial difficulty and the Group
has no realistic prospect of recovery

&t EEBBTEHRAEDHRENBREE K MIBR IR 5L

FERTEERAIREAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

B E2023F12A31IBIEFE
27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 27. EMTR-#
Credit risk and impairment assessment ISEREREEF G &
- continued
Time deposits with original maturity over three FEIfAHA=EAHAMN LT
months and bank balances - continued GERRIBITHEER — &
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of TREFNAEEEMEE(RETE
the Group's financial assets which are subject to ECL HEEBEIG) MEERZEERR
assessment:
External Internal 12-month or Gross carrying amount
credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL FREAE
+ZERASZ2H
SNEEETE HBEEISR BHEESH 2023 2022
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i & TERT THET
Financial assets at amortised cost
REERPFIRZEMEE
Trade receivables 16 N/A (Note 1) Lifetime ECL 73,437 51,855
(not credit-impaired)
B REWRIE A (M sE1) LHRBEERR
(BEEHE)
Credit-impaired 526 538
BEERE
Other receivables 16 N/A (Note 2) 12-month ECL 27,265 30,468
Hith e W IR ISR (M 2E2) PEREHEERR
Rental deposits 16 N/A (Note 2) 12-month ECL 91,636 78,758
Hege i (HizE2) PREREHEERS
Time deposits with original maturity 17 A or above (Note 3) 12-month ECL 160,898 198,200
over three months
FIABEA=BEANLNEBEN AR £ (W3 zx3) PREREHEEER
Bank balances 17 A or above (Note 3) 12-month ECL 450,374 459,828
RITH R ARSI L (i 5E3) REREHEERE
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 27. &f TR -#

15 B B R (8 5T 1 — &

Credit risk and impairment assessment

- continued
Time deposits with original maturity over three REIHEAE %A Efl B EHE HA
months and bank balances - continued FERR R RITHEBR — &
Notes: B 5E :
Trade receivables primarily consist of department store sales, 1. BSZRKUREBEFEQFERTEAEH

credit card sales and e-payment sales platforms such as
Alipay or WeChat Pay. The Directors monitor their balances
on an ongoing basis. Trade receivables in connection with
invoices settled through credit card of HK$19,069,000 (2022:
HK$12,298,000) or e-payment platforms of HK$7,223,000
(2022: HK$820,000) are assessed individually and with high
credit rating and no past due history. Trade receivables with
significant balances in connection with department stores
of HK$47,671,000 (2022: HK$39,275,000) are assessed
individually. Other trade receivables in connection with
department stores are considered on a collective basis.
In determining the ECL for certain trade receivables in
connection with department stores, the management of
the Group has taken into account the historical default
experience, the change in the global default rate and GDP.
The management of the Group considers some of these
assets are short-term in nature and the probability of default
is negligible on the basis of reputable department stores. In
this regard, the Directors consider that the Group's credit risk
is insignificant.

In determining the ECL for other receivables and rental
deposits, the management of the Group has taken into
account the historical default experience and forward-looking
information, as appropriate, and concluded that no significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition is noted and
risk of default is insignificant, and therefore, no impairment
has been recognised.

The Group measures the loss allowance on liquid funds equal
to 12-month ECL. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited
because cash are placed with reputable banks with external
credit rating of at least "A" assigned by an international

credit-rating agency or state owned.

EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED #E 2 8% EHR AT

Ewé)ﬂ%ﬁﬁ%&iﬁﬁ%waﬁﬁ
EETENHEFE EERHEGR
HiE#k o B3B8 5 A £19,069,0007% 7T
(20224 : 12,298,000 7T) 8 B F = 1
F£7,223,00078 7T (20224 : 820,000
TREBEZERERM 2 EZRKRIEY
GHETEBEIGIEESGEEIRK
jtmtﬁﬂiaﬁ HEEREEMZE

KA R E 57 IR IB47,671,00078 7T
(2022¢ 139,275,000 7T) BEITEE
i BESEATARZEMBESE
WHRETLIREBEEFTUETE RN E
THREERAAAMNETESERN
ENBHREERER  AEETERE
RERBEERLE s RIREBAOEN
HEHMGDP AEEEREERAZSE
EEBRACE TEAREAABE
WEERR MR A EHHMTEH
WMot FE EERAHELEBZE
ERBITAEE o

REETEMERRERESREZRA
HEERBEAE  AEREERER

BERBEZEBETHRACHEKATHEME
B UBAGEEREBEEDR

HEEDCRLEREZEN  BEIA
EARE BB B o X R UL B SRR
=S

rEBGERDET 2 HEEBEHE
ERR2EREREERE - "RPES
2FERBAR BEHRREDHFER
REEZRIIMEEFRELDERIA
%&J(EEIEI‘?%TEE%%M%*%TE%)Z%ETT
FEARTA °

P.137

2023 ANNUAL REPORT £ R




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A o 55 AR B AR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

B E2023F12B31HLIEFE

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 27. &M T H -~
Credit risk and impairment assessment ISEREREEF G &
- continued
Time deposits with original maturity over three FEIfAHA=EAHAMN LT
months and bank balances - continued FERR R RITHEER &
There has been no change in the estimation RAFELTEIEHAROHEE
techniques or significant assumptions made R o

throughout the year.

The following table shows the movement in lifetime TRETEMERNETRETEHEN
ECL that has been recognised for trade receivables BEZRUMEBEERINBPEREE
which are assessed for impairment individually: BiEEE !
Movement in the allowance for credit losses: EEGEBEEENEFHBER:

Lifetime ECL

(credit-impaired)
LHTEHREERE

(BEERE)

HK$'000

FAET

As at 1 January 2022 r2022F181H 585
Exchange realignment bE 72 o 28 (47)
As at 31 December 2022 2022%12831H 538
Exchange realignment [E 72 o 8 (12)
As at 31 December 2023 §#2023%F12A31H 526
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 27. &f TR -#

Liquidity risk

The Group's liquidity position is monitored closely by
the management of the Company. In the management
of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains
a level of cash and cash equivalents adequate to
finance the Group's operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group's remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities and
lease liabilities based on the agreed repayment
terms. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest cash
flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is
derived from interest rate curve at the end of the
reporting period.

B B & B

AEBZARFETKNBAERIE
BEEEZYER RNEERPETA
R AEEEEREREHNIR
EREEEEYKTE UBGEAE
EEFBRBRREAERTZE -

TERFINAEEERMABEMNEES
BEREBEZREEMRZRNGEINEDY -
TERODREBEAEEITREKRERZ
EFPARRENEEZRERE
TRERHE TREHAMNBRE
THRERE - MIEAHMNKXZABR
EARAMES > RERERBERERERS
HAIRZ M REAR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

B E2023F12A31IBIEFE
27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 27. &M TR -#
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MERGEEBERBEK —#
policies - continued
Liquidity risk - continued BB R fE— &
Carrying
amount
Weighted Repayable More than More than at the
average  ondemand 1yearbut  2yearsbut Total end of the
effective or within less than less than undiscounted reporting
interest rate 1 year 2 years 5years cash flows period
REX REEH
g3 BEN 1EMUE pi: 3V RenE RERHX
kS 1ER BOReE BDRSE k] ZIREE

% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TERT

At 31 December 2023 12023F12A31H
Trade and other payables BRREMEMTE - 140,613 - - 140,613 140,613
Amounts due to related companies EAEEADRE - 4,513 - - 4,513 4,513
Lease liabilities HEEBE 5.04 188,294 81,623 52,680 322,597 304,627
333,420 81,623 52,680 467,723 449,753
Carrying
amount
Weighted Repayable More than More than at the
average on demand 1 year but 2 years but Total end of the
effective or within less than less than  undiscounted reporting
interest rate 1 year 2 years 5 years cash flows period
BREX FER
] BE 1ENE 2EN Hene
BREA % 1#R BOR2E BORSE e
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERT TERT TERT TER
At 31 December 2022 12022128318
Trade and other payables BEAREMERFE - 73,737 - - 73,737 73737
Amounts due to related companies EAEEAFNE - 6,954 - - 6,954 6,954
Lease liabilities HEEBE 341 205,170 77,571 22,786 305,527 300,100
285,861 77,571 22,786 386,218 380,791
c. Fair value measurements of financial assets c. TREERERZAAEES
and liabilities =
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts EETR HBEBHEAUEARGEUH
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded RERMMTZzETMEERETMRER
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial ZHREERBEEZANBERS °

statements approximate to their fair values.

EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED E 28 % EHR AT

2023 ANNUAL REPORT £ R




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

or o B 155 i 3R B 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HLIEFE
28.CAPITAL COMMITMENT 28. B K i
2023 2022
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FHE T
Capital expenditure in respect of BERBEEITNEXRR
acquisition of property, plant and REUMBHRREBEZ
equipment contracted for but MESKBRREZ
not provided in the consolidated BEAMEX
financial statements 6,831 6,922
29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 29. i g 1 51 &
The Shareholders passed an ordinary resolution at the REER2018F58 280 RT 2 REBFBEK
AGM held on 23 May 2018 to approve the adoption of g LB —BEBRRD HERAER AT —
a share option scheme of the Company (“Share Option IEFER TR (TRERREST &) ©
Scheme”).
A summary of the Share Option Scheme is set out as FERES ZBESHRINWT:
follows:
To enable the Group to attract, retain and motivate EAEBREHARS B RAB R
talented eligible participants to strive for future HBrEER2EEALAEBR Z2BE
development and expansion of the Group. ERREBEBERME S -
Eligible participants include employees (whether full- CERZEECEREEERADH
time or part time, including any Executive Director, HERB BEEAAITES FFRIT
Non-executive Director or Independent Non-executive EERBEIFEHTES)IREMEE
Director) and such other eligible participants. MBEE o
Total number of Shares available for issue: Bl 317 2 B 19 48 80 687,308,812
687,308,812 Shares, representing 10.14% of the total K HERAFREBEETRS
number of issued Shares as at the date of this annual A HI10.14% °
report.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

29.SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

i. in aggregate not to exceed 1% of the Shares in
issue in any 12-month period unless approved by
the Shareholders; and

i. options granted to eligible participant in
excess of the 1% limit must be approved by the
Shareholders.

At any time from the date of grant of the option to
such a date determined by the Board but in any event
not exceeding 10 years from the date of grant.

No vesting period unless otherwise determined by the
Board.

(i) Price payable on application or acceptance of
the option: HK$1.00;

(ii) The period within which payments or calls must
or may be made: Within 28 days from the date of
grant; and

(iii) Period within which loans for such purposes
of the payments or calls must be repaid: Not
applicable.

The exercise price is determined by the Board (subject
to adjustment) and will not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of the Share as stated in daily
quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the offer
date; and (ii) the average closing price of the Shares
as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the offer date.

20. M@ RGESTE— 2

FRIEERREH E > THIET M2
BEREA LA EEBEDBTR
MP2Z1%; K&

i. MEERSHEHERHZERE
EBIB1%RERACRKRERE -

EERERHOBMEEERIETE
ZEBBHLBBEREMER &
EmIU AN SBERH B AES105F -

MRIEEFESTRE SMER
JBHAR -

() BN IEMNBEBRESRAEZSNS
BB 1.00% T ;

(i) #4788 0 8E /F & 1 # 2X i@ %0 <
MZHR:BRE HHEE28H
Nk

(i) W ERBEEM ARV EN N RA
BRONERBAR:TER -

THEEREFTECHEH FHEE) H
RABR T ERSE (IROKELY
HRERBXAMEERERMATZK
mE; RPN ERZLNBHAS
BEXHRNBMIAESAREBRAT
ZFHRHE -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

29.

30.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

Approximately 4 years (expiring on 22 May 2028).

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 31
December 2023, no option was granted, exercised,
cancelled, lapsed or remained outstanding under the
Share Option Scheme.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group participates in both a defined contribution
schemes which are registered under the Hong Kong
Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the "ORSO"
Scheme) and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme") established under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance in December 2000.
The assets of the schemes are held separately from those
of the Group, in funds under the control of independent
trustees. Employees who were members of the ORSO
Scheme prior to the establishment of the MPF Scheme
were offered a choice of staying within the ORSO Scheme
or switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas all new
employees joining the Group on or after 1 December 2000
are required to join the MPF Scheme.

The retirement benefit costs charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income represents contributions payable to the funds by
the Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.
Where there are employees who leave the ORSO Scheme
prior to vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions
payable by the Group are reduced by the amount of
forfeited contributions.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group makes
mandatory and voluntary contributes 5% of relevant
payroll costs to the Scheme, which mandatory contribution
is matched by the employee. The maximum amount of
mandatory contribution is limited to HK$1,500 per each
employee by month and voluntary contribution is limited
to HK$5,000 depends on the staff position by month.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions
from both employees and the Group at 5% of the
employee's basic salary.
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30.

P.144

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES - continued

The eligible employees of the Company's subsidiaries in
the PRC, Macau, Singapore and Malaysia are members
of pension schemes operated by respective local
governments. The subsidiaries in the PRC are required to
contribute a certain percentage ranging from 38% to 44%
of the relevant cost of the payroll of these employees to
the pension schemes to fund the benefits. The subsidiary
in Macau is required to contribute MOPB0 for every
employee per month. The subsidiary in Singapore is
required to contribute 16% of the employee's monthly
gross salary while the subsidiary in Malaysia is required
to contribute 12% to 13% of the employee's monthly gross
salary. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefit schemes is to make the required
contribution under the schemes.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of
HK$26,976,000 (2022: HK$25,451,000) represents
contributions, payable to those plans by the Group at the
rate specified in the rules of the plans.

Pursuant to the Employment Ordinance, Chapter 57,
the Group has the obligation to pay LSP to qualifying
employees in Hong Kong upon retirement, subject to a
minimum of 5 years employment period, based on the
following formula:

Last monthly wages (before termination of employment)
X 2/3 X Years of service.

Last monthly wages are capped at HK$22,500 while
the amount of long service payment shall not exceed
HK$390,000. This obligation is accounted for as a post-
employment defined benefit plan.

Furthermore, the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance passed in 1995 permits the Group to utilise the
Group's Mandatory Provident Fund contributions, plus/
minus any positive/negative returns thereof (collectively,
the "Eligible Offset Amount”), for the purpose of
offsetting LSP payable to an employee (the "Offsetting
Arrangement”).

EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED E 28 % EHR AT

2023 ANNUAL REPORT £ R

0.iR kB FIEHE— =

RABRHPE B FMEARERA
DZHBARZEEREEARSEHK
NEBZERRKEFERE > PEZHE
REAIEREMEEHRSHEEREAZET
B () F38% F44%) 7t 1 LR K& 5t
B ARANREEES BMPZHNE
NEIBEEBAMESSEB M M60EPI T
MMmEWNB AR EMEE BB EERE
H16% Mt > MEKRFARWNE QB BE
ERHBESEFELI2%E13% M T o &N E
EEREREBANFE 2 —SEARE
SHEIEHPTEMRR o

PRI R RAERE ¥ 26,976,000 7t (2022
&F 125,451,000 7)) AANEEB R Z LTS
HAFFREMNEBEXEOZSEIEHD

R o

RBEEBREEHEAG (F57F) » REBRIKE
AEEBAEBANSHRANEBELX
HTEREE(RRE) FEREELSEN
FEMR > WA TFTANGE:

RE—EREMNIE(FERMEALZA) X
2/3 X IRFBEMR °

RE—EENIE LIRA22500/87T > M
EREMEEE S HB48390,0008 T ° &
BEBEHERA " BEEREEG®ATIE
1TIZE -

5N RIF1996FBBICGARE AR E
stEI R A1) > BB LA B A & B 52 4l
MAEzGRBD)NBESEMNLH
EEME/EOREBEEREHEE
B ARBEEAEIXMNNERS
(MRS 2 HE)) ©
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

30. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES - continued BA@EFTE -~

The Amendment Ordinance was gazetted on 17 June
2022, which abolishes the use of the accrued benefits
derived from employers' mandatory MPF contributions
to offset the LSP. The Abolition will officially take effect
on the Transition Date (i.e., 1 May 2025). Separately, the
Government of the HKSAR is also expected to introduce
a subsidy scheme to assist employers for a period of 25
years after the Transition Date on the LSP payable by
employers up to a certain amount per employee per year.

Under the Amendment Ordinance, the Group's mandatory
MPF contributions, plus/minus any positive/negative
returns, after the Transition Date can continue to be
applied to offset the pre-Transition Date LSP obligation
but are not eligible to offset the post-Transition Date
LSP obligation. On the other hand, the accrued benefits
derived from the Group's voluntary contributions made
pre-, on or post-transition can continue to be used to
offset pre- and post-transition LSP. Furthermore, the LSP
obligation before the Transition Date will be grandfathered
and calculated based on the Last monthly wages
immediately preceding the Transition Date and the years
of service up to that date. The Amendment Ordinance
has no impact on the Group's LSP liability with respect
to employees that participate in MPF Scheme and the
relevant accounting policy is disclosed in note 3.

BETIE IR 2022F6 B17THA S » BERRTEE
RREEaEMaBEE MM ESEF K
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RIBHEERREERNRRE o L5
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31.BER R
The terms and balances with some related companies RERPAR 2 E TRERRR R R
at the end of the reporting periods are set out in IR EHBARAIRR LM 5E22 o

consolidated statements of financial position and note 22,

During the year, other than the arrangements with and RER RO ENBEESRAE
compensation to the Directors and key management BXrEEEABITINZ ?#Ez F'] TBZ £
personnel of the Group disclosed in note 9, the Group had HA MBI > NEFEERE R ZRl
the following transactions with related parties: ™
2023 2022
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT

(1) Sales of goods to Directors, their HEBRFTEE - WS
close family members and related #T #3 K B E A 5] (MY 5Ea K& b)

companies (notes a and b) 2,108 2,487
(2) Electricity and air-conditioning EXRENFHREABZ

expenses paid and payable to BEREAEZH

related companies (notes a and b) (B s¥a Kk b) 278 262
(8) Service charge in respect EXNRENFRAERT

of information system and ERBENRZRKRITEHIEZ

administrative work paid and AR %5 & (Mf 5T a K b)

payable to related companies

(notes a and b) 17,610 11,983
(4) Advertising expenses paid and EXUAREMSTFHEAERTZ

payable to related companies &R X (M stakb)

(notes a and b) 1,034 348
(5) Financial advisory fee paid and B RENFT—EEEE

payable to a related company NEZHMBERER

(notes a and b) (Bff st akzb) 447 420
(6) Purchase of furnitures from a BRESFEREXRA

related party (notes a and b) (B 5Ea Kz b) 375 32
(7) Interest expenses on lease mMEEEQAGEFHZHEEER

liabilities to related companies MEMZ (MYsEa)

(note a) 1,587 993

(8) Variable lease payments to related BEEATELEN I EHE
companies (notes a and c) 7 (b 5Fa e ) 1,617 1,352
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12B31HIEEE

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - continued 31.FAE S 3

As at 31 December 2023, deposits paid to related R2023F12831H ) EXI FRAEATZ
companies amounting to HK$16,679,000 (2022: 16,679,000/ 7T (20224 : 17,009,00078
HK$17,009,000) was included in rental deposits under TTEINAERBEEZHERE ©

non-current assets.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had recognised R2023F12831H » AEBEMERER

lease liabilities of approximately HK$53,213,000 (2022: BNHERDEE&SELNA53213000%

HK$72,380,000) for the leases with related companies. 7T (20224 ¢ 72,380,000,%71:) °

Notes: B 5F -

(@) The related companies are controlled by a Director or private (a) FIERABDH—ZLEBEZTHAMAGTE(B—HE
trusts of which another Director is one of the eligible beneficiaries. EHEP—ZLEENRTEA)ZEH o

(b) These transactions are connected transactions exempt from (b) ZEXRZHBEHE EMHEF14A.331K E £
announcement, reporting and independent shareholders’ RETFTRG EREBUREHIEZRE
requirements under Rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules. HEERS °

(c) The expenses paid are in relation to the tenancy agreements (c) Eﬁitﬂfﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ‘@$@ﬂ%§L@ﬂﬂiZ
entered into with the related companies of the Company. Some EMZ HEPEEXTZHEAABZET
of these transactions are disclosed continuing connected ?ﬁaﬁ?—*y MEXB(EER EmRAFE14A
transactions (as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) of B HEBRESEREEENRE L
the Company which details are disclosed under the section headed - ENREAEBERZF2E R E D — R
"Directors’ Material Interests in Transactions, Arrangements, = o

Contracts and Connected Transactions” of the Directors’ Report.
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Gr B 15 AR MY AR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

B E2023F12H31HLEEE

32.RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NRNMETHELEZAGRHIR

TREINEAEEREETHREENER
BHFBE METHMEENERLF
REAEBGREREAERTOESHE
EHAMEHRERENREREHRKIE

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
arising from financing activities. Liabilities arising from
financing activities are those for which cash flows were,
or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group's

P.148

consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from EME °
financing activities.
Lease Bank Dividend
liabilities borrowings payable Total
HEaE RTEEH R 8 4t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET
As at 1 January 2022 R2022F181H 251,454 165,452 - 416,906
Financing cash flows: MERESRE !
- Bank borrowings raised —-BERBZRTEE - 300,000 - 300,000
- Repayments of bank borrowings —EBERETEE - (465,452) - (465,452)
- Repayments of lease liabilities —EEHEaRA (244,428) - - (244,428)
- Interest paid —BfNFE (6,208) (688) - (6,896)
- Dividends paid —Bftes - - (49,490) (49,490)
Net cash used in financing cash flows MERESREMAZ
IREFE (250,636) (166,140) (49,490) (466,266)
New leases entered or renewed SIUNEBE2HAEE 307,866 - - 307,866
Lease modified HEEX (9,992) - - (9,992)
Interest expenses FERZ 6,208 688 - 6,896
Dividend recognised BERZKE - - 49,490 49,490
Exchange realignment FE o 2 (4,800) - - (4,800)
As at 31 December 2022 1£2022%12H831H 300,100 - - 300,100
Financing cash flows: MERESRE:
- Repayments of lease liabilities —EEMHEAa®R (240,597) - - (240,597)
- Interest paid —BEHE (10,228) = - (10,228)
- Dividends paid —-BNYRE - - (93,557) (93,557)
Net cash used in financing cash flows MERESREMAZ
REFE8 (250,825) - (98,557) (344,382)
New leases entered or renewed FIURNEBEZHMEE 247,156 - - 247,156
Lease modified/terminated EE®R  KiE (1,626) - - (1,626)
Interest expenses FEMZ 10,228 = - 10,228
Dividend recognised BEIEKRE - - 93,557 93,557
Exchange realignment BE 2 5 B (406) - - (406)
As at 31 December 2023 #2023%12H831H 304,627 - - 304,627
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B E2023F12H31HLEEE

33.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 33. R BIZHMBIRRBRRERS
RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

2023 2022
HKS$'000 HK$'000
F#Ex FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB ABZRE 2,714,664 2,714,664
Amount due from a subsidiary fEW—EWEB AR MIE 2,142,356 2,084,543
4,857,020 4,799,207
Current assets TENE E
Amount due from a subsidiary FEl—MBMEABMIE 93,557 49,490
Deposits and prepayments B RFENHRIE 563 563
Cash and cash equivalent HEMRREEEY 257 285
94,377 50,338
Current liabilities mEaE
Other payables and accrued Hh AR IE & st & A
charges 415 415
Amount due to a subsidiary FE—EMHREBARBME 88,041 87,866
88,456 88,281
Net current assets (liabilities) FHEE(RAB)EE 5,921 (87,943)
Net assets BEERE 4,862,941 4,761,264
Capital and reserve B Rki#fE
Share capital [N 3,484,152 3,484,152
Reserve G 1,378,789 1,277,112
Total equity 48 1 3% 4,862,941 4,761,264
The Company's statement of financial position was KRB Z AR & 12024 F 38198
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of KESgHERBENE B TIE
Directors on 19 March 2024 and are signed on its behalf ERREE!
by:
CINDY YEUNG WONG CHI FAI
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
o EF
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33.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE OF THE COMPANY - continued

=
_ /{5

BB.HEABZHMBRABR KR

Retained

profits

REEHM

HK$'000

FHET

At 1 January 2022 1t2022F181H 1,175,756
Profit and total comprehensive income FRHEMNEZ2E WAL

for the year 150,846

Final dividend paid for 2021 2021 F B RHAKE (23,728)

Interim dividend paid for 2022 2022F BT EARE B (25,762)

At 31 December 2022 £2022F12831H 1,277,112
Profit and total comprehensive income FREMEE2EW A LR

for the year 195,234

Final dividend paid for 2022 2022F E T KRB B (42,033)

Interim dividend paid for 2023 2023F B HHIR B (51,524)

At 31 December 2023 #2023F12H31H 1,378,789

34.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 34. T EM B AT ZiHE

R2023F R 2022F12H31H » ZAT EE
MEB AT ZEEBW T

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at
31 December 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration/

Proportion of issued
share capital held by

Issued ordinary
share capital/

Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital the Group Principal activities
i/ M/ BRTZER rEERE
AR RTE SEMRS B/ ZMES BRITRAZLEHN FEEH
2023 2022
Direct subsidiaries
EENEAR
Emperor Watch & Jewellery (China) Hong Kong (“HK") HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
Holdings Limited 58 18T REER
HEEHRKE(PE)ERERAS
Emperor Watch & Jewellery (China) BVI US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
Holdings Limited HBRELEE 1£7T REER
HEEHRKE(PE)ERERAS
Emperor Watch & Jewellery (HK & Macau) BVI US$1 100% 100% Investment holding

Holdings Limited HBRELEE 1£7T REER

HEBRKEBR)ERERAT
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B E2023F12A31IBIEFE
34.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 34. T EMB AT 215
- continued — &
Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary Proportion of issued
registration/ share capital/ share capital held by
Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital the Group Principal activities
i/ ERTEZER FEERA
MEBARRE BiEE B ZMES BRITRAZLEHN FTEEH
2023 2022
Direct subsidiaries - continued
EEMBAR -2
Emperor Watch & Jewellery Overseas HK HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
Holdings Limited 58 18T REER
HREBHKUREBINERBRLRR
Indirect subsidiaries
HEREAR
Emperor Watch & Jewellery (HK) HK HK$100 100% 100%  Sales of watches &
Company Limited 58 10078 7T jewellery
HREBHKUKEGEB) EARAT HEER LGS
Emperor Watch & Jewellery (Malaysia) Malaysia MYR3,000,000 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
Sdn. Bhd. EXRAET 3,000,000 2k 7 &2 HEKE
°E
Emperor Watch & Jewellery (Singapore)  Singapore SGD1,000,000 100% 100%  Sales of watches &
Pte. Ltd. N 1,000,000%f /I3 7t jewellery
HEBRIGE
EWJ Macau Company Limited Macau MOP25,000 100% 100%  Sales of watches &
EWSRFIERAT P 25,0002 7t jewellery
HEBRIGE
Gold Pleasure Investment Limited HK HK$10,000 100% 100%  Property investment
SELEBRRLA 5E 10,0007 7 MELE
HEBHFKELR)BRAT! PRC HK$280,000,000 100% 100%  Sales of watches &
I 280,000,000 75 jewellery
HEBRLGE
# The subsidiary is a wholly foreign owned enterprise. # ZHRWB AT A—RINEBEELE -
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at TEHBHBUTEWNB AT ZITETEER

the end of the year.

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of
the particulars of all subsidiaries of the Group will be of
excessive length and therefore the list above contains
only the particulars of direct subsidiaries or indirect
subsidiaries which principally affect the results or assets

of the Group.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

fF 5 A 2
For the year ended 31 December
HE12B31BLLEE
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
F#ET F#ET F#Ex F#ET F#ET

RESULT E
Revenue A 4,110,117 2,626,609 3,926,608 3,684,261 4,823,223
Gross Profit E F 1,263,979 840,064 1,229,505 1,177,262 1,450,281
Profit before taxation B% 12 B & A 119,324 34,796 256,269 277,244 367,732
Taxation 18 (29,293) (803) (51,574) (565,119) (68,513)
Profit for the year KRBHEBEAN

attributable to owners EihEE mF

of the Company 90,031 33,993 204,695 222,125 299,219

As at 31 December
#12831H
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
F#ET FET F#ExT F#ExT F#ET

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEER&f&

Total assets BmEE 6,086,602 5,773,431 5,350,255 5,381,829 5,708,364
Total liabilities = (1,613,575) (1,224,313) (629,465) (536,770) (661,676)
Net Assets BEEFE 4,473,027 4,549,118 4,720,790 4,845,059 5,046,688
Equity attributable to KABHEB A
owners of the Company JRE i # 7 ’e
and total equity HERE R 4,473,027 4,549,118 4,720,790 4,845,059 5,046,688
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